
This will be a hybrid meeting held in person in the Village Council Chambers with a remote participation option available via Zoom due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three 
working days’ notice to the Village. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
phone, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 

Village of Beverly Hills             Municipal Building 
Regular Village Council Meeting               18500 W. 13 Mile Road  
Tuesday, November 2, 2021                            7:30 p.m. 
 

Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88458819908 
Meeting ID: 884 5881 9908 

Dial in: 1-646-876-9923 (US)  
 

AGENDA 
Roll Call/Call to order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Amendments to Agenda/Approve Agenda 
 
Community Announcements 
 
Public Comments on items not on the published agenda 
 
Consent Agenda 
1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held October 19, 2021. 
2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, October 25, 2021. 

 
Business Agenda 
1. Review and consider request from Beverly Hills Lions Club for their Candy Cane Collection to be 

held November 24 – December 24, 2021.   
2. Review and consider Development Agreement for 31655 Southfield Road, Goddard School. 
3. Review and consider Parks & Recreation Board’s recommendation to establish a commercial 

filming fee for parks.  
4. Review and consider Parks & Recreation Board’s recommendation to hold a Concert in the Park on 

July 22, 2022.  
5. Review and consider approval of Backflow Preventer Incentive Program.   
6. Review and consider approval of Change Order No. 1 for 2021 Concrete Patch Repair Program.  
7. Review and consider renewing liability and property insurance policy with Michigan Municipal Risk 

Management Authority. 
8. Announcement of a vacancy on the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
9. Update on Village Manager search process. 

 
Public comments  
 
Manager’s report 
 
Council comments 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88458819908


This will be a hybrid meeting held in person in the Village Council Chambers with a remote participation option available via Zoom due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three 
working days’ notice to the Village. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
phone, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 

Adjournment 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 1 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Present: President George; President Pro-Tem Hrydziuszko; Members: Abboud, 

Kecskemeti, Mooney, O’Gorman, and Peddie    

 

Absent: None 

  

Also Present: Village Manager, Wilson via Zoom 

Village Clerk / Assistant Manager, Rutkowski 

Village Attorney, Ryan 

Public Safety Director, Torongeau via Zoom 

Fire Marshal, Lieutenant Ginther 

Planning and Zoning Administrator, Lloyd 

 

President George called the regular Village Council meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. in the Village 

Council Chambers located at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025. The Pledge 

of Allegiance was recited by those in attendance.  

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, to amend the agenda for clarification regarding Business 

Item 3, the Council will reserve the approval of the development agreement for 31655 Southfield 

Road, Goddard School, for the first or second meeting in November, pursuant to Administration’s 

recommendation.   

  

Motion passed. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, to approve the agenda as amended.  

 

 Motion passed.  

 

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Karen Gilbert, Amherst, asked for clarification regarding the pathways plan and which streets 

would potentially be included. She also asked about a Code Enforcement report.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, be it resolved, the consent agenda is approved as published. 

1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held October 5, 2021. 

2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, October 11, 2021. 

3. Set public hearing date to receive comments on 2022 Community Development Block Grant funding 

allocation for Tuesday, November 16, 2021.   

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER SUBCOMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION FOR AN 

APPOINTMENT TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

C1 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 2 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

O’Gorman asked to recuse himself from voting on this item because his wife is employed by the 

same firm as one of the applicants. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, the Village Council allows Councilmember 

O’Gorman to recuse himself from Business Agenda Item 1.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

There is a vacancy on the Zoning Board of Appeals for a partial term ending June 30, 2023. 

Announcements of the vacancy were made at the September 21 and October 5, 2021 Village 

Council meetings. 

 

The Village received 2 applications for the vacancy. The Village appreciates everyone who applied 

to serve on the Board. 

 

A subcommittee consisting of members O’Gorman (chair), Mooney, and Peddie met with the 

applicants at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 19, 2021 in the conference room at the Village Office 

located at 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 to review applications and offer a 

recommendation.  

 

There was discussion about the length of residency requirement (1 year), and applicant 

Richardville was deemed ineligible for appointment since he has not lived in Beverly Hills for an 

entire year. 

 

George commented on appointing one of the sitting ZBA alternates to a full member position.  

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, the Beverly Hills Village Council appoints 

William Whalen to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a partial term ending June 30, 2023.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Abboud – Yes 

George – No 

Hrydziuszko – No 

Kecskemeti – No 

Mooney – Yes 

O’Gorman (recused) 

Peddie – Yes  

Motion failed (3-3)  

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER PARKS & RECREATION BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION 

TO REINSTATE A BUY-A-BRICK FUNDRAISING PROGRAM 

The Parks & Recreation Board had been discussing reinstating the Buy-A-Brick Program at 

Beverly Park. The fundraising program was most recently suspended in 2018. Through this 

program, residents and local businesses can purchase engraved bricks to be installed at Beverly 

Park. In the past, individual orders were submitted to the Village and then Administration placed 

a large order with the vendor once many orders were compiled. The intent is to temporarily open 

the ordering window for a few months this fall/winter to have bricks ready to be installed next 

spring.  



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 3 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

Administration and Board members researched different vendors that provide the brick engraving 

fundraising service. At their September 15, 2021 meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board reviewed 

vendors and selected Brick Markers USA.  The Board took into consideration all of the additional 

services provided by Brick Markers USA when making their decision, such as website and form 

creation and free shipping. These services are outlined in the attached email dated August 5, 2021 

in the Council meeting packet.  

 

The Board also discussed the cost of bricks and how much to charge donors. The funds raised by 

this program will go toward the Tree Fund for the purchase of trees in Village parks. The Village 

of Beverly Hills Parks and Recreation Board recommended Council approve their request to 

reinstate the Buy-A-Brick Fundraising Program at Beverly Park with the rate of $60.00 for a 4x8 

engraved brick and $120.00 for an 8x8 engraved brick. 

 

Village Attorney Ryan has reviewed a proposed agreement with the vendor and has prepared a 

memo for Council’s review as well. 

 

While it has not been used in a few years, the Village does have a line item created for the Buy-a-

Brick pass through funds (Account Number 101-000-675.04).  

 

Motion by Hrydziuszko, second by Mooney, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village 

Council approves the Parks & Recreation Board’s request to reinstate the Buy-a-Brick 

Fundraising Program at Beverly Park with the rate of $60.00 for a 4x8” engraved brick and 

$120.00 for an 8x8” engraved brick.  Be it further resolved that that Council authorizes 

Village Administration to execute the agreement with Brick Markers USA for the purchase 

of engraved bricks.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0)  

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER REQUEST FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR A MIXED-

USE DEVELOPMENT AT 31655 SOUTHFIELD ROAD, GODDARD SCHOOL 

Abboud asked to continue to be recused from matters relating to the subject development. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, the Beverly Hills Village Council allows 

Councilmember Abboud to recuse himself from Business Agenda Item 3. 

 

Motion passed.  

 

Lloyd provided an overview of the site plan request. On July 21, 2021, the Village Council 

reviewed plans and application materials to develop a childcare facility, The Goddard School of 

Beverly Hills, at 31655 Southfield Road in the B-Business District and within the Village Center 

Overlay District (VCOD). The property is approximately 1.5 acres in size, irregularly shaped and 

located on the west side of Southfield north of 13 Mile. The proposal includes a mixed-use 

development project consisting of 2 buildings. Building 1 (located at the rear of the site) is a two-

story, 16,000 square foot childcare/preschool building with multiple classrooms and facilities and 

includes a screened mechanical room on top. Building 2 (at the front of the site) is also two-stories 

consisting of 5,000 square feet of floor area with mixed uses including office and retail. Upon 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 4 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

review of the proposal, the Village Council requested the Planning Commission review the project 

and provide a recommendation on the proposed development. 

 

The Planning Commission conducted two meetings on the matter: July 28, 2021, and August 25, 

2021. Upon completion of the review, the Planning Commission recommended Village Council 

approval of the project subject to the applicant receiving variances for the size of the outdoor play 

area and separation from another facility providing similar service. 

 

On September 13, 2021, the Zoning Board of Appeals conducted two public hearings on the 

above-noted variances as follows: (Both Variances Were Granted) 

Case No. 1390 – Relief from Section 22.08.370(b) requiring 150 square feet for each person 

cared for; Required – 30,000 square feet; Proposed – 10,240 square feet.  

Case No. 1391 – Relief from Section 22.08.370(c) requiring 1,500-foot separation from another 

State Licensed Facility; Proposed - adjacent Petitioner 

 

The review, approval and recommendation of this project was extensive and comprehensive. The 

following documents were included as a link in the packet which provided detailed background 

information on the proposed project: 

- September 13, 2021, ZBA agenda packet, application and report with attachments, 

includes 

o PC Report dated August 20, 2021 Cover only – see additional link 

o PC Report dated July 23, 2021, cover only see additional link 

o July 14, 2021 VC report (July 21st meeting) 

▪ Project description, application and plans 

▪ Compliance with intent of VCOD (Hobbs & Black July 14, 2021) 

▪ Traffic Study (Storey Engineering, June 30, 2021) 

- Color Renderings 

- August 20, 2021 PC report and attachments for the August 25 meeting 

o PC Report dated August 20, 2021, complete with attachments 

▪ August 20, 2021 Review letter from HRC 

▪ August 12 response to planner letter from Hobbs & Black 

▪ August 12, 2021 response to engineering comments Storey Engineering 

▪ August 12, 2021 response to landscape comments, Storey Engineering 

▪ Detailed floor and development plans 

▪ Planner comments 

 

As stated at the onset of the meeting, review and consideration of the development agreement will 

take place at the first or second Council meeting in November.  

 

George asked about phasing of the project, certificates of occupancy, and bonds.  

 

Lloyd commented on how landscape and performance bonds are calculated.  

 

Kecskemeti asked for clarification regarding the variances.  She commented that the local 

ordinance was based on state rules regarding a residential distance of 1,500 feet. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 5 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Applicant Kellie McDonald, Goddard School, 935 E. Silverbell, Lake Orion, was in attendance.  

She stated that the project also has lien restraints from the lender which is another assurance for 

the Village that the project will be completed. Her priority is to get the school building certificate 

of occupancy.  

 

Mooney commended McDonald and Lloyd on the proposed project and the presentation.  

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, the Beverly Hills Village Council accepts 

the Planning Commission’s recommendation and hereby approves the site plan for 

development of a child-care center at 31655 Southfield Road located in the B-Business 

District and within the Village Center Overlay District finding that the project has 

received required variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals and that the project meets 

the requirements of the B-Business District and the intent of the Village Center Overlay 

District. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (6-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COOPERATIVE 

PURCHASE OF SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS FOR THE PUBLIC 

SAFETY DEPARTMENT THROUGH THE ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT 

PROGRAM 

Lieutenant Ginther provided an overview of the request. Beverly Hills Public Safety, as the lead 

agency, along with four other partner public safety agencies (Berkley, Bloomfield Hills, 

Farmington, and Huntington Woods) applied for a regional grant under FEMA’s Assistance to 

Firefighter Grant (AFG) program and council recently resolved to accept the grant award of 

$608,163.64 on behalf of the consortium and act as the fiduciary. 

 

The Partner Agencies Purchasing Committee, comprised of a representative from each 

participating agency, reviewed various Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) 

manufacturers. Through discussions and evaluations based on safety, fit, form, function, and cost 

of ownership. The committee narrowed their selection and field tested two manufacturers’ product 

– the MSA G-1 and the Scott X-3. The committee chose to use our semi-annual training evolution 

at the Combined Regional Emergency Services Training (CREST) facility at Oakland Community 

College (OCC) to evaluate the two SCBA’s. This allowed our personnel to evaluate these units 

while crawling and climbing in darkness and around obstacles as well as live fire conditions. After 

the public safety officer’s that were participating in the training wore each of the SCBA, they 

indicated their preferred choice on an evaluation to capture the data. The criteria that was used 

included visibility, communications, ease of donning/doffing the units with the face mask, 

regulator connection, air cylinder change, buddy breathing/RIC use, heads-up display, Thermal 

Imaging Camera (TIC) low air alarm, and overall ease of use. 

 

Upon conclusion of the evaluation process, the MSA G-1 was clearly the highest rated SCBA. The 

evaluation data showed that this particular unit outperformed the Scott in every criteria. The 

committee then met to review and discuss all of the data, and unanimously decided that the MSA 

G-1 SCBA best suited our needs. Furthermore, the MSA G-1 system significantly increases our 

communications and interoperability with neighboring departments, as many are already using this 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 6 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

system. As improved communications and interoperability is also a performance benchmark of the 

grant award, the MSA G-1 should be selected as the replacement SCBA for our consortium. 

 

After careful consideration and review by the Partner Agencies Purchasing Committee the MSA 

G-1 was selected as the preferred system. Due to the vendor distribution model of MSA, Apollo 

Fire Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI 48065 is the only vendor able to sell MSA 

SCBA products within Oakland County. Because of this, the Partner Agencies Purchasing 

Committee is requesting that council waive competitive bids in order to award this purchase to the 

sole source meeting specifications, as allowed for in Chapter 12.1 of the Village Charter, to Apollo 

Fire Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI 48065. 

 

In order for funds not to be co-mingled, as required by FEMA as it relates to this grant, there will 

be two invoices per municipality that are deposited into two separate accounts. The first set of 

invoices will be for the Local Match Amount of a minimum of $60,816.36 for the FEMA purchase 

of 94 SCBA's and 36 additional face pieces as outlined in the grant award. The total Local Match 

Amount for all five communities combined will be $67,489.88 and will be deposited in and paid 

out of a specific account for the grant as outlined in the attached project order budget. 

 

The second set of invoices will be for the necessary additional equipment that goes with the MSA 

G-1 SCBA system that is not part of the grant award. The amount for all five communities is 

$159,540.02 for the purchase of additional equipment as outlined in the attached project order 

budget and quoted separately from the grant award. These funds will be deposited in and paid out 

of the South Oakland Fire Association (SOFA) fiduciary account that the Village of Beverly Hills 

already maintains on behalf of that organization, of which the Village is a member. The entire 

order will be delivered to the Beverly Hills Public Safety Department to be inventoried, as this is 

a required component of the grant. 

 

Based upon the Background, SCBA Assessment, and Purchase Outline sole source justification 

detailed in the memo provided; as well as the Council’s long term vision of providing a high level 

of fire protection and rescue response to both the residents and those visiting the village, the 

recommendation to purchase the necessary quantity of MSA G-1 SCBA and appurtenances for the 

SOFA Public Safety Purchasing Consortium from Apollo Fire Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore 

Drive, Romeo, MI 48065, is put forth for the council’s review and consideration. 

 

Motion by Peddie, second by Abboud,  

 

BE IT RESOLVED that based upon the recommendation of the Partnering Agencies 

Purchasing Committee, which evaluated different SCBA manufacturers with safety, 

interoperability, communications, function, compatibility, and cost of ownership being the 

primary criteria for acceptance, the purchase of MSA G1 SCBA’s and ancillary equipment 

through Apollo Fire Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI 48065 for the total 

amount of $835,193.54 be approved, and; 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Local Match Amount portions of the consortium 

grant funded purchase for the partner agencies of the Cities of Berkley, Bloomfield Hills, 

Farmington, and Huntington Woods, and the Village of Beverly Hills, which totals 

$67,489.88, and is individually outlined in the project purchase budget, be invoiced to those 

municipalities by the village respectively, and; 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 7 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Local Non-Grant Funded Cost portions of the 

consortium purchase for the partner agencies of the Cities of Berkley, Bloomfield Hills, 

Farmington, and Huntington Woods, and the village of Beverly Hills, which totals 

$159,540.02, and is individually outlined in the project purchase budget, be invoiced to 

those municipalities by the Village respectively, and; 

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the Village of Beverly Hills pay for its Local Match 

Amount and Total Local Non-Grant Funded Costs of the consortium purchase, which 

totals $70,394.86, utilizing available funds in Capital Expenditures account number 401-

905-981.05. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER HIRING VILLAGE MANAGER SEARCH FIRM 

Mooney gave an overview of the Personnel Committee’s work researching firms for the Village 

Manager search, services provided, and fees. Based on their findings, the Personnel Committee 

recommends hiring the Michigan Municipal League (MML) to conduct the search. The MML’s 

base price is $17,000 and the Personnel Committee recommends allocating additional funding for 

contingencies.  

 

Kecskemeti stated that the firm and the Council will take the search very seriously in order to get 

a great candidate to fill the role of Village Manager. She stated that the MML would advertise the 

position, screen candidates, and assist with the interview process.  

 

George stated the firm will meet with Council and staff to create a marketing packet for the 

opportunity in order to attract quality candidates. He said that background checks would be 

included as part of the contingencies and that the MML could start right away. 

 

O’Gorman asked if there was a target number of candidates and if this would be a nationwide 

search. George confirmed it would be nationwide, but there is not a set target number of candidates 

at this time.  

 

Peddie asked about the scope of the background checks and who performs the background checks. 

George stated background checks would be included in the contract with MML to perform.  

 

Abboud asked about a timeframe. George was hopeful based on his research of firms that the 

process would take around 90 days, but also indicated that the upcoming holidays and a potential 

candidate having to provide notice may cause delays.  

 

Mooney stated that all Council members will be included in the search and hiring process.  

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, be it resolved that the Beverly Hills Village 

Council agrees to obtain the Michigan Municipal League Executive Search Team to assist 

with the search process for Village Manager at a cost not to exceed $25,000.00 and 

authorizes the Village President and Administration to execute an agreement with said firm 

subject to review by the Village Attorney.  Funds are available in account 101-248-831.00. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 8 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Karen Gilbert, Amherst, stated that every opinion matters. She stated how much she has paid in 

taxes over the years and recommended that the newer members of Council listen to the long-time 

residents more.  

 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

Wilson thanked Lloyd for his presentation on the Goddard School development.  He thanked 

Ginther for his efforts on the grant application for the Public Safety Department.  

 

Wilson stated that Greenfield was reopened.  

 

The TAP grant application was submitted by HRC, Inc. on the Village’s behalf. It will be a few 

months before the Village hears back. 

 

Wilson stated that the 2021 Concrete Repair Program began last week.  

 

Wilson stated that his last day with the Village is November 30, 2021 and he is working on a 

transition plan.  

 

He stated that Administration will be bringing a Backflow Preventer Incentive Program before the 

Council at their next meeting for review.  

 

O’Gorman suggested that there should be better communication regarding the Backflow Preventer 

Incentive Program for senior residents.  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

O’Gorman thanked the applicants for applying to the ZBA.  He thanked all of the volunteers in the 

Village for their service. He commended Lieutenant Ginther on his work on the grant application 

and stated that it speaks to the quality of people who live and work in Beverly Hills.   

 

Kecskemeti provided more details for the Backflow Preventer Program proposal.  He stated that 

the incentive program combined with a public education campaign is a short term and first step 

solution for stormwater management.  

 

Abboud stated the audit is complete and the Village is in good financial standing. He provided 

updates on the MML and SEMCOG meetings he attended. He attended a Next meeting earlier that 

morning and stated the recreation center is open. He stated anyone 50 or older can join Next.  He 

talked about the Governor’s Executive Order regarding the aging population and the establishment 

of the Health and Aging Services Administration.  

 

Mooney expressed gratitude to George and Kecskemeti for their work on the executive search firm 

process.  

 

Hrydziuszko stated that the Halloween Hoot will be held on Saturday, October 23, 2021 from 6-8 

p.m. She said the event is modified due to the pandemic. She thanked the Goddard School for 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 19, 2021 – PAGE 9 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

working to bring child care to the area. She thanked Lt. Ginther for his hard work on the grant.  

She thanked the Personnel Committee for their work on the executive search process.  

 

George thanked the Public Safety Department and Lt. Ginther. He stated the backflow prevention 

incentive program is modeled after other communities.  He stated that there are challenges and is 

looking for ways to be proactive. He appreciated Mooney’s kind words regarding the Personnel 

Committee. He is looking for the best answers for the community.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, to adjourn the meeting at 9:10 p.m.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

 

 

 

John George     Kristin Rutkowski   

Council President    Village Clerk   



TO PRESIDENT GEORGE & MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL.   THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF

EXPENDITURES FOR APPROVAL.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RUN FROM 10/12/2021 THROUGH 10/25/2021.

ACCOUNT TOTALS:

101 GENERAL FUND $83,252.84

202 MAJOR ROAD FUND $14,653.24

203 LOCAL STREET FUND $25,794.44

205 PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT FUND $179,001.57

268 LIBRARY $130,738.50

285 RETIREE HEALTH CARE FUND $5,397.69

592 WATER/SEWER OPERATION FUND $43,288.96

701 TRUST & AGENCY FUND $847.50

TOTAL $482,974.74

MANUAL CHECKS- COMERICA $3,860.03

MANUAL CHECKS- INDEPENDENT $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $486,834.77

GRAND TOTAL $486,834.77

C2



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/2Page: 10/22/2021 10:31 AM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 10/22/2021 - 10/22/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank COM COMERICA

10.00 AMANDA LYNETTE MAYMAN6057184455COM10/22/2021
280.82 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6021784456COM10/22/2021

7,116.41 APOLLO FIRE APPARATUS3116484457COM10/22/2021
203.56 APPLIED IMAGING5328484458COM10/22/2021
293.47 ARROW OFFICE SUPPLY CO.5180284459COM10/22/2021

130,738.50 BALDWIN PUBLIC LIBRARY0210084460COM10/22/2021
19.04 BEVERLY HILLS ACE5140984461COM10/22/2021
200.00 BILLY'S ROOFING LLCMISC84462COM10/22/2021
650.00 BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD3406384463COM10/22/2021

40,378.41 BLUE CARE NETWORK3086184464COM10/22/2021
250.00 BRADLEY MENDELSOHN6057384465COM10/22/2021

6,357.00 BS&A SOFTWARE5082284466COM10/22/2021
250.00 CAITLYN SHEA6057484467COM10/22/2021
155.83 CATHY WHITE5859784468COM10/22/2021
265.00 CHRISTINA ULLMAN6057684469COM10/22/2021
71.49 CINTAS CORPORATION #315934784470COM10/22/2021
300.00 CITI ROOFINGMISC84471COM10/22/2021

94,321.00 CITY OF BIRMINGHAM5039284472COM10/22/2021
17,627.74 COALITION OF PUBLIC SAFETY3192584473COM10/22/2021

111.85 COMCAST5143984474COM10/22/2021
27,180.17 COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.0450084475COM10/22/2021

343.43 CONSUMERS ENERGY5082684476COM10/22/2021
22.00 EAGLE LANDSCAPING & SUPPLY6037284477COM10/22/2021

1,050.00 ERIC KOENIG3068584478COM10/22/2021
4,401.76 EXXONMOBIL3122884479COM10/22/2021
3,481.75 G&M ENTERPRISES, LTD.5879584480COM10/22/2021

994.74 GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY6020684481COM10/22/2021
7,357.28 GUARDIAN5358384482COM10/22/2021

500.00 HOME DEPOT USA, INCMISC84483COM10/22/2021
300.00 HOME INSPECTION PLUS INCMISC84484COM10/22/2021
700.00 HOWARD SHOCK3257884485COM10/22/2021
468.00 HUNT SIGN COMPANY 5901084486COM10/22/2021
250.00 IANNA QUATHRONE6055184487COM10/22/2021
960.00 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY3907084488COM10/22/2021
340.00 JAMES HEALY5942384489COM10/22/2021
395.00 JASON'S OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC5915884490COM10/22/2021

1,050.00 JOHN MILLIRON3052184491COM10/22/2021
800.00 JOSEPH J. ZAMBO6037384492COM10/22/2021
250.00 JULIE O'REILLY6045284493COM10/22/2021
150.00 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 5179284494COM10/22/2021

2,860.33 LOU'S TRANSPORT INC.5135084495COM10/22/2021
418.07 MAINS LANDSCAPE SUPPLY4949184496COM10/22/2021

1,684.40 MARC DUTTON IRRIGATION, INC.6057884497COM10/22/2021
41.67 MARGARET A.S. BEKE5911684498COM10/22/2021
700.00 MATRIX BASEMENT SYSTEMSMISC84499COM10/22/2021
250.00 MEGGAN TAVEL6057784500COM10/22/2021

1,050.00 MICHAEL MILES3179484501COM10/22/2021
310.00 MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION6049384502COM10/22/2021
934.77 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET 5933084503COM10/22/2021
250.00 MINDY EISENBERG6049184504COM10/22/2021
570.00 NEXT 5911284505COM10/22/2021
221.74 NEXT 5911284506COM10/22/2021
765.00 NYE UNIFORM EAST5179984507COM10/22/2021
143.31 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS5154084508COM10/22/2021

36,868.33 O.C.W.R.C.5175184509COM10/22/2021
12,173.55 OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE/CREST5973584510COM10/22/2021

535.20 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER'S5083084511COM10/22/2021
300.00 OLSON ROOFING AND SIDING INCMISC84512COM10/22/2021
300.00 PEAKS CONSTRUCTION, LLCMISC84513COM10/22/2021
179.98 RAPID RESPONSE5912284514COM10/22/2021
200.00 RENOVATION BY DESIGN, LLCMISC84515COM10/22/2021
300.00 RIDGECON CONSTRUCTION INCMISC84516COM10/22/2021

3,711.39 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND1610084517COM10/22/2021
314.36 ROCK ABBOUD5914284518COM10/22/2021

31,224.00 S.O.C.R.R.A.1650084519COM10/22/2021
25,391.04 SAFEBUILT INC. 5928284520COM10/22/2021

700.00 SCHOENHERR HOMESMISC84521COM10/22/2021
124.91 SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LAB3163084522COM10/22/2021
463.97 SOUTHFIELD POSTAL SERVICE3814584523COM10/22/2021

6,225.00 SUNNYSIDE LANDSCAPING6057984524COM10/22/2021
1,200.00 SUNSET MAINTENANCE SERVICE1770084525COM10/22/2021

200.00 SUPERIOR GLASS BLOCK & MOMISC84526COM10/22/2021
250.00 THOMAS BARANOWSKI6057584527COM10/22/2021
285.47 VERIZON WIRELESS MESSAGING3820584528COM10/22/2021
250.00 VICTORIA CALVER6057284529COM10/22/2021
804.00 WINDER POLICE EQUIPMENT2080084530COM10/22/2021
180.00 ZIP ETC INC2090084531COM10/22/2021



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 2/2Page: 10/22/2021 10:31 AM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 10/22/2021 - 10/22/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

COM TOTALS:

482,974.74 Total of 77 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
482,974.74 Total of 77 Checks:



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/1Page: 10/22/2021 10:32 AM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 10/12/2021 - 10/21/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank COM COMERICA

529.99 MICRO CENTER 5904584453COM10/14/2021
3,330.04 COSTCO WHOLESALE5963684454COM10/20/2021

COM TOTALS:

3,860.03 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
3,860.03 Total of 2 Checks:



B1 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Lions Club Candy Cane Collection  
 
Date:   October 25, 2021 
 
Village Administration received a request from the Beverly Hills Lions Club regarding their annual Candy 
Cane Collection to be held November 24 – December 24, 2021. Please see the attached letter.  
 
Recommended Resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council approves the request from the Beverly Hills Lions Club to 
solicit donations for their annual Candy Cane Collection from November 24 to December 24, 2021 and 
the following notice will be placed on the display sign outside of the Village Offices, provided there is no 
conflict: “Support Lions Candy Cane Collection November 24 to December 24.” 
 
 
Attachment   
 





1 

To: Village President George, Village Council 
Chris Wilson, Village Manager 

From: Mark D. Lloyd, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Date:  October 26, 2021 

Re: Proposed Development Agreement for Approved Site Plan to Develop Vacant Lot at 31655 Southfield - 
Goddard School of Beverly Hills 

THIS ITEM WAS TABLED AT THE OCTOBER 19, 2021, VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 

On October 19, 2021, the Village Council approved the site plan for development of a mixed-use development 
project at 31655 Southfield Road in the B Business District and within the Village Center Overlay District. A copy of 
the draft Development Agreement associated with the approved site plan was presented to the Village Council for 
consideration at that time. The Village Council tabled consideration of the Development Agreement to allow 
additional time for review. Section 22.23.11.d, Development Agreement of the Village Zoning Ordinance states, 
“Development approved according to this Section shall enter into a development agreement with the Village, in a 
form acceptable to the Village Attorney that specifies the required improvements, commitments and obligations of 
the development as it relates to the overall Village Center district. The development agreement shall specify any 
recognized benefits provided by the developer, flexibility granted by the Village, and maintenance provisions for all 
site improvements.”   

A copy of the October 13, 2021, report (10-19-2021 VC meeting) and all attachments are included with this report 
along with the Development Agreement which has been signed by the developer. In addition, a copy of the 
PowerPoint presentation given at the October 19, 2021, meeting, and subsequently sent via e-mail to the Village 
Council on October 20, 2021, is also included and provides an overview of the project and outlines the terms and 
conditions of the Development Agreement. The Village Attorney has prepared a resolution for consideration on this 
matter. It too, is included. 

Suggested Resolution: See proposed resolution prepared by the Township Attorney. Date to be amended to 

November 2, 2021. 

B2



B3 

1 

To: Village President George, Village Council 
Chris Wilson, Village Manager 

From: Mark D. Lloyd, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Date:  October 13, 2021 (updated) 

Re: Proposed Redevelopment of Vacant Lot at 31655 Southfield – Goddard School of Beverly Hills 

THIS ITEM WAS TABLED FROM THE OCTOBER 5, 2021, VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 

Project History: 

On July 21, 2021, the Village Council reviewed plans and application materials to develop a childcare facility, The 
Goddard School of Beverly Hills, at 31655 Southfield Road in the B-Business District and within the Village Center 
Overlay District (VCOD). The property is approximately 1.5 acres in size, irregularly shaped and located on the west 
side of Southfield north of 13 Mile. The proposal includes a mixed-use development project consisting of 2 buildings. 
Building 1 (located at the rear of the site) is a two-story, 16,000 square foot childcare/preschool building with 
multiple classrooms and facilities and includes a screened mechanical room on top. Building 2 (at the front of the 
site) is also two-stories consisting of 5,000 square feet of floor area with mixed uses including office and retail. Upon 
review of the proposal, the Village Council requested the Planning Commission review the project and provide a 
recommendation on the proposed development. 

The Planning Commission conducted two meetings on the matter: July 28, 2021, and August 25, 2021. Upon 
completion of the review, the Planning Commission recommended Village Council approval of the project subject to 
the applicant receiving variances for the size of the outdoor play area and separation from another facility providing 
similar service. 

On September 13, 2021, the Zoning Board of Appeals conducted two public hearings on the above-noted variances as 

follows: (Both Variances Were Granted) 

Case No. 1390 – Relief from Section 22.08.370(b) requiring 150 square feet for each person cared for; Required – 

30,000 square feet; Proposed – 10,240 square feet.  

Case No. 1391 – Relief from Section 22.08.370(c) requiring 1,500-foot separation from another State Licensed 

Facility; Proposed - adjacent Petitioner: 

Project Background: 

The review, approval and recommendation of this project was extensive and comprehensive. Following is a list of 

documents included in the first link below which provides reports and pertinent documentation from the Village 

Council, Planning Commission and ZBA. These documents provide detailed background and review information on 

the proposed project. 

- September 13, 2021, ZBA agenda packet, application and report with attachments, includes 
o PC Report dated August 20, 2021 Cover only – see additional link



B3 

2 

o PC Report dated July 23, 2021, cover only see additional link
o July 14, 2021 VC report (July 21st meeting)

▪ Project description, application and plans
▪ Compliance with intent of VCOD (Hobbs & Black July 14, 2021)
▪ Traffic Study (Storey Engineering, June 30, 2021)

- Color Renderings 

Project Link (ZBA report and noted attachments): 

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:cd2babf9-d62c-4210-8517-7b24d0b1e201 

Following is a list of documents included in the second link below which provides additional reports and pertinent 

documentation from the Planning Commission. These documents provide detailed background and review 

information on the proposed project. 

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:c52c2014-d40c-4d2e-a89a-99c6af567429 

- August 20, 2021 PC report and attachments for the August 25 meeting 
o PC Report dated August 20, 2021, complete with attachments

▪ August 20, 2021 Review letter from HRC
▪ August 12 response to planner letter from Hobbs & Black
▪ August 12, 2021 response to engineering comments Storey Engineering
▪ August 12, 2021 response to landscape comments, Storey Engineering
▪ Detailed floor and development plans
▪ Planner comments

A copy of the proposed Development Agreement has been submitted, and reviewed by the Village Manager, Village 

Attorney, Planning and Zoning Administrator and Contract Planner. Edits have been made and returned to the 

developer for review and comment. All edits have been accepted, agreed upon and incorporated into the 

Development Agreement distributed along with this report.  

A project presentation will be made at the meeting. In addition, the applicant and their team will be available to 

answer any questions and to discuss the project. Please contact staff at your earliest convenience if there are any 

questions or comments which might need additional research prior to the meeting. 

Suggested Resolution:  

The Village Council accepts the Planning Commission’s recommendation and hereby approves the site plan for 

development of a child-care center at 31655 Southfield Road located in the B-Business District and within the Village 

Center Overlay District finding that the project has received required variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals and 

that the project meets the requirements of the B-Business District and the intent of the Village Center Overlay 

District. Furthermore, the Village Council hereby approves the associated Development Agreement and authorizes 

the Village President to execute on behalf of the Village Council. 

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:cd2babf9-d62c-4210-8517-7b24d0b1e201
https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:c52c2014-d40c-4d2e-a89a-99c6af567429






VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 

RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS REGARDING  

A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN JMAX CAPITAL, LLC, 

DOING BUSINESS AS THE GODDARD SCHOOL OF BEVERLY HILLS 

AND THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 

At a regular meeting of the Beverly Hills Village Council, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held at the Village Office at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, Michigan 

48025, on Tuesday, November 2, 2021, at 7:30 p.m. 

PRESENT: _______________________________________________________ 

       _______________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:   _______________________________________________________ 

The following Resolution was offered by _______________________________ 

and supported by ___________________________ to approve the Development 

Agreement between the Village of Beverly Hills and JMAX Capital,  LLC, a Michigan 

Limited Liability Company doing business as the Goddard School of Beverly Hills to 

become effective upon the successful completion of the pending litigation in the Oakland 

County Circuit Court Case No. 21-190294-AA. 

AYES:  __________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: __________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Kristin Rutkowski, being the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Village 

of Beverly Hills, Oakland County, Michigan, do hereby certify and declare that the 

foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by the Village Council of the 

Village of Beverly Hills at a regular meeting thereof held on November 2, 2021. 

__________________________________________ 

Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk  































EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 
P:\2021\21705\DOCS\Exhibits for Development Agreement\Legal Description.docx 

 

 
 DATE:  October 14, 2021 

 RE:  Goddard of Beverly Hills Development Agreement 

 

 

 
 
 
Legal Description: 
 
Per Title Agency, Fidelity National Insurance Company, Title Commitment No. A0765944, 
Effective February 4, 2021: 
  

Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Oakland, Village of Beverly Hills. 

 

Lot 6, except the east 200 feet of the south 56.66 feet, and Outlot A, Supervisor’s Plat 

of Gould Court, as recorded in Liber 65 of Plats, Page 11, Oakland County Records. 

 

  

   



THE GODDARD SCHOOL OF BEVERLY HILLS

C-0.0

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TSEXISTING LEGEND SCHEDULE B-SECTION II EXCEPTIONS

THE FOLLOWING OBSERVATIONS WERE MADE AT THE TIME
OF SURVEY:

AN EXISTING WALL ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY APPEARS TO STRADDLE THE PROPERTY LINE.

A WELL CROSSES THE SOUTH LINE OF THE PARCEL.

AN ASPHALT RAMP THAT, BASED ON HISTORICAL IMAGERY,
WAS USED BY THE MCDONALDS THAT USED TO EXIST ON
THE SUBJECT PARCEL APPEARS TO ALLOW ACCESS TO THE
SUBJECT PARCEL FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

A SET OF CONCRETE STEPS ALLOWS ACCESS TO THE SITE
FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

SURVEYOR'S OBSERVATIONS

AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY, EVIDENCE WAS OBSERVED OF
POTENTIAL ENCROACHMENTS. OTHER ENCROACHMENTS MAY OR
MAY NOT STILL EXIST ON OR OFF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

1.     THERE IS DIRECT ACCESS TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY VIA SOUTHFIELD ROAD, A PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

2.     THE PROPERTY SURVEYED AND SHOWN HEREON IS THE SAME PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT
A OF TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, 

        TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970, EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020.

3.     REFERENCE SURVEY BY: NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS, JOB NO.: H831, DATED: 12/2/2013.

BENCHMARKS

DATUM: NAVD88

BM A:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 51'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 49'± NORTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF NORTH ACCESS DRIVE TO SUBJECT'S SITE.
ELEV = 727.57

BM B:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 53'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 29'± SOUTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF THE SOUTH ADJOINER'S ACCESS DRIVE.
ELEV = 726.91

BM C:
60D NAIL IN EAST FACE UTILITY POLE, 428'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 100'± NORTH
OF SUBJECT'S SOUTH PROPERTY LINE.
ELEV = 729.78

UTILITY/REFERENCE INFO

WM: SE OAKLAND CO. WATER AUTHORITY
CONTACT: BOB JACKOVICH
PHONE: 248-288-5150
RECEIVED: N/A

WM/SAN/STORM: BEVERLY HILLS VILLAGE
CONTACT: KEVIN LAWRENCE
PHONE: 248-646-6404
RECEIVED: N/A

GAS: CONSUMERS ENERGY
CONTACT: KURT GOLDING
PHONE: 517-374-2002
RECEIVED: 4/8/21

ELEC: DETROIT EDISON
CONTACT: N/A
PHONE: 313-235-5632
RECEIVED: N/A

PHONE/CABLE: AT&T
CONTACT: LINDA DENNISUK
PHONE: 248-456-8256
RECEIVED: 4/7/21

PHONE/CABLE: COMCAST
CONTACT: CRAIG PUDAS
PHONE: 248-809-2715
RECEIVED: N/A

UTILITY NOTES

1. ALL  UTILITIES  SHOWN ARE BASED ON;
a. MISS DIG MARKINGS LOCATED AT TIME OF SURVEY, OR;
b. UTILITY MAPS PROVIDED TO THE SURVEYOR AT THE TIME OF
THE SURVEY.

2. THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY
APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-1.0

TO
PO

G
R

A
PH

IC
 +

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y 

SU
R

VE
Y

TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020

Joint R/W in favor of The Detroit Edison Company and Michigan Bell
Telephone Company and the Covenants, Conditions and
Restrictions contained in instrument recorded in Liber 4341, page
375.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

U.G.L. Permit in favor of The Detroit Edison Company and the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 4440, page 327
(IT IS NOT ON, OR DOES NOT TOUCH, THE SURVEYED PROPERTY)

Easement Agreement in favor of the Village of Beverly Hills and the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 4889, page 192.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

Covenants, conditions, restrictions and other provisions but
omitting restrictions, if any, based on race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status or national origin as contained in
instrument recorded in Liber 5200, page 701.
(ZONING RECLASSIFICATION)

Easement Agreement in favor of the Village of Beverly Hills and the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 6081, page 127.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

Easement Agreement in favor of the Board of Road Commissioners
of the County of Oakland and the Covenants, Conditions and
Restrictions contained in instrument recorded in Liber 6118, page
721.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

Easement for Sidewalk in favor of the Village of Beverly Hills and
the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 11156, page 769.
(THE LOCATION CANNOT BE DETERMINED FROM THE RECORD
DOCUMENT)

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

11
.

9.

7.

8.

12.

9.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

             FLOOD ZONE
FEMA MAP SCALES DO NOT SUPPLY SUFFICIENT LEVEL OF
DETAIL TO PLOT ACCURATELY. ZONES IF PLOTTED HEREIN
ARE APPROXIMATE.

BY SCALED MAP LOCATION AND GRAPHIC PLOTTING 
ONLY, THE SUBJECT PROPERTY APPEARS TO LIE ENTIRELY
IN ZONE (X) AREA DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE OF THE 
0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD PLAIN ACCORDING TO THE
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR THE COUNTY OF 
OAKLAND, COMMUNITY PANEL NO. (26125C0538F), 
EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 29, 2006.

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TSEXISTING LEGEND

THE FOLLOWING OBSERVATIONS WERE MADE AT THE TIME
OF SURVEY:

AN EXISTING WALL ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY APPEARS TO STRADDLE THE PROPERTY LINE.

A WELL CROSSES THE SOUTH LINE OF THE PARCEL.

AN ASPHALT RAMP THAT, BASED ON HISTORICAL IMAGERY,
WAS USED BY THE MCDONALDS THAT USED TO EXIST ON
THE SUBJECT PARCEL APPEARS TO ALLOW ACCESS TO THE
SUBJECT PARCEL FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

A SET OF CONCRETE STEPS ALLOWS ACCESS TO THE SITE
FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

SURVEYOR'S OBSERVATIONS

AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY, EVIDENCE WAS OBSERVED OF
POTENTIAL ENCROACHMENTS. OTHER ENCROACHMENTS MAY OR
MAY NOT STILL EXIST ON OR OFF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

1.     THERE IS DIRECT ACCESS TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY VIA SOUTHFIELD ROAD, A PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

2.     THE PROPERTY SURVEYED AND SHOWN HEREON IS THE SAME PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT
A OF TITLE AGENCY: FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,

        TITLE COMMITMENT NO: A0765944, EFFECTIVE DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2021.

3.     REFERENCE SURVEY BY: NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS, JOB NO.: H831, DATED: 12/2/2013.

BENCHMARKS

DATUM: NAVD88

BM A:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 51'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 49'± NORTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF NORTH ACCESS DRIVE TO SUBJECT'S SITE.
ELEV = 727.57

BM B:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 53'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 29'± SOUTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF THE SOUTH ADJOINER'S ACCESS DRIVE.
ELEV = 726.91

BM C:
60D NAIL IN EAST FACE UTILITY POLE, 428'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 100'± NORTH
OF SUBJECT'S SOUTH PROPERTY LINE.
ELEV = 729.78

UTILITY/REFERENCE INFO

WM: SE OAKLAND CO. WATER AUTHORITY
CONTACT: BOB JACKOVICH
PHONE: 248-288-5150
RECEIVED: N/A

WM/SAN/STORM: BEVERLY HILLS VILLAGE
CONTACT: KEVIN LAWRENCE
PHONE: 248-646-6404
RECEIVED: N/A

GAS: CONSUMERS ENERGY
CONTACT: KURT GOLDING
PHONE: 517-374-2002
RECEIVED: 4/8/21

ELEC: DETROIT EDISON
CONTACT: N/A
PHONE: 313-235-5632
RECEIVED: N/A

PHONE/CABLE: AT&T
CONTACT: LINDA DENNISUK
PHONE: 248-456-8256
RECEIVED: 4/7/21

PHONE/CABLE: COMCAST
CONTACT: CRAIG PUDAS
PHONE: 248-809-2715
RECEIVED: N/A

UTILITY NOTES

1. ALL  UTILITIES  SHOWN ARE BASED ON;
a. MISS DIG MARKINGS LOCATED AT TIME OF SURVEY, OR;
b. UTILITY MAPS PROVIDED TO THE SURVEYOR AT THE TIME OF
THE SURVEY.

2. THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY
APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

11.

13
.

17
.

12.

15
.

16
.

13.

18.

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-2.0

SI
TE

 D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-3.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

IT
E 

PL
A

N

LEGEND
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-3.1

PU
B

LI
C

 O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E 
PL

A
N

LEGEND
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-4.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

LEGEND
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-5.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

LEGEND



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.1

N
O

TE
S 

+ 
D

ET
A

IL
S-

1

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.2

D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 2

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.3

D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 3

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.4

D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 4

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

 S
YS

TE
M

 D
ET

A
IL

S

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SCALE: (REFER TO DETAIL)

C-6.5



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: A0765944,
EFFECTIVE DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2021)

EXHIBIT A DESCRIPTION:

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF OAKLAND,
VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS.

LOT 6, EXCEPT THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET, AND
OUTLOT A, SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT, AS RECORDED IN
LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE(S) 11, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS.

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-7.0

SE
SC

 P
LA

N

LEGEND

BENCHMARKS

DATUM: NAVD88

BM A:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 51'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 49'± NORTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF NORTH ACCESS DRIVE TO SUBJECT'S SITE.
ELEV = 727.57

BM B:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 53'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 29'± SOUTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF THE SOUTH ADJOINER'S ACCESS DRIVE.
ELEV = 726.91

BM C:
60D NAIL IN EAST FACE UTILITY POLE, 428'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 100'± NORTH
OF SUBJECT'S SOUTH PROPERTY LINE.
ELEV = 729.78



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-8.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

PL
A

N

LEGEND

GRAPHIC SCALE



ST
AT

E
OF MICH IGA

N

ARC
H

I
T

E
T

C

R
E

G
IS

E

E
T

R

L ANDS
EAC P

R

Farmington Hills, MI 48336
24333 Orchard Lake Rd, Suite G

registered Landscape  Architect
Community Land Planner  and

and ASSOCIATES

A

ph. (248) 557-5588
fax. (248) 557-5416

FP
FELINO A. PASCUAL

FP

Do Not scale drawings. Use
figured dimensions only

Copyright

This document and the subject matter
contained therein is proprietary and is
not to be used or reproduced without
the written permission of Felino Pascual
and Associates

sheet no:

project no:

notice:

date:

checked by:

drawn by:

job no./issue/revision date:

sheet title:

project location:

project:

client:

seal:

2021

LS21.076.06  REVIEW  6-11-2021

The location and elevations of existing
underground utilities as shown on this
drawing are only approximate. no guarantee
is either expressed or implied as to the
completeness of accuracy. contractor shall be
exclusively responsible for determining the
exact location and elevation prior to the start
of construction

JP, DK

LS21.076.06

6-08-2021

 of 3

935 E. Silverbell Road
Lake Orion Michigan
48360

Village of Beverly
Hills, Michigan

THE
GODDARD
SCHOOL
Beverly Hills

THE GODDARD
SCHOOL OF LAKE
ORION

31655 Southfield Rd.

SPA      6-30-2021

LS21.076.06    SPA      8-12-2021

40'
scale:

20'0' 80' 120'

Village of Beverly Hills, Michigan
The Goddard School

proposed

Goddard

Southfield R
oad

unless noted otherwise, numerical value on landscape
quantities specified on plan take precedence over
graphic representation.

note:

landscape legend

(Eastern Redbud, Crabs, Hawthorn,
Serviceberry, etc...)

perennials and/or seasonal flowers

(White Pine, Austrian Pine, Spruces )
evergreen trees

ornamental trees

deciduous trees

evergreen shrubs
(junipers, yews, hollies, arborvitae,
boxwood,etc.)

(Maples, Celtis occidentalis,
Zelkova serrata, Oaks, Lindens,
Nyssa sylvatica, etc...)

deciduous shrubs
(viburnum, forsythia,burning
bush,cotoneaster dogwood,etc.)

(Daylily, Sedum, Ornamental Grasses,
Black Eyed Susan, etc...)

LANDSCAPE
PLANTING DETAIL

LS-3

parking

street trees
landscape requirement summary

Retail

Gould Court

,,,,

School

general landscape notes:

landscape plan for:



ST
AT

E
OF MICH IGA

N

ARC
H

I
T

E
T

C

R
E

G
IS

E

E
T

R

L ANDS
EAC P

R

Farmington Hills, MI 48336
24333 Orchard Lake Rd, Suite G

registered Landscape  Architect
Community Land Planner  and

and ASSOCIATES

A

ph. (248) 557-5588
fax. (248) 557-5416

FP
FELINO A. PASCUAL

FP

Do Not scale drawings. Use
figured dimensions only

Copyright

This document and the subject matter
contained therein is proprietary and is
not to be used or reproduced without
the written permission of Felino Pascual
and Associates

sheet no:

project no:

notice:

date:

checked by:

drawn by:

job no./issue/revision date:

sheet title:

project location:

project:

client:

seal:

2021

LS21.076.06  REVIEW  6-11-2021

The location and elevations of existing
underground utilities as shown on this
drawing are only approximate. no guarantee
is either expressed or implied as to the
completeness of accuracy. contractor shall be
exclusively responsible for determining the
exact location and elevation prior to the start
of construction

JP, DK

LS21.076.06

6-08-2021

 of 3

935 E. Silverbell Road
Lake Orion Michigan
48360

Village of Beverly
Hills, Michigan

THE
GODDARD
SCHOOL
Beverly Hills

THE GODDARD
SCHOOL OF LAKE
ORION

31655 Southfield Rd.

SPA      6-30-2021

LS21.076.06    SPA      8-12-2021

plant material list
and planting
details

LS-2

keykey commentssizecommon namebotanical name

plant material list
comments

SCARIFY PLANTING PIT SIDES.
RECOMPACT BASE OF TO 4"
DEPTH.

NOTE:
1.EVERGREEN TREE  SHALL BEAR
SAME RELATION TO FINISH GRADE
AS IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR SLIGHTLY
HIGHER THAN FINISH GRADE UP TO 6"
ABOVE GRADE, IF DIRECTED BY
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR HEAVY
CLAY SOIL AREAS.

2. DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL LEADER.
PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR BROKEN
BRANCHES.

3. REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS ETC.

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS COMPLETELY FROM
THE ROOTBALL. CUT AND REMOVE
WIRE BASKET AND BURLAP FROM
TOP HALF OF THE ROOTBALL.

MOUND EARTH TO FORM
SAUCER

MULCH 3" DEPTH WITH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
NATURAL IN COLOR. LEAVE 3"
CIRCLE OF BARE SOIL AT BASE
OF TREE TRUNK TO  EXPOSE
ROOT FLARE.

2" X 2" HARDWOOD STAKES,
MIN. 36" ABOVE GROUND FOR
UPRIGHT, 18" IF ANGLED.
DRIVE STAKES A MIN. 18"
INTO UNDISTURBED GROUND
OUTSIDE ROOTBALL.
REMOVE AFTER ONE YEAR.

STAKE TREES AT FIRST BRANCH
USING 2"-3" WIDE BELT- LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC STRAPS.
ALLOW FOR SOME MINIMAL
FLEXING OF THE TREE. REMOVE
AFTER ONE YEAR.

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS
OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.

PLANT TREE SO ROOT FLARE IS AT
OR ABOVE SURROUNDING GRADE.
REMOVE ROOT BALL DIRT TO
EXPOSE FLARE IF NECESSARY AND
CUT ANY GIRDLING ROOTS.

4. GUY EVERGREEN TREES ABOVE 12'
HEIGHT. STAKE EVERGEEN TREE
BELOW 12' HEIGHT.

evergreen planting detail
no scale

MOUND EARTH TO
FORM SAUCER

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE PLANT
MATERIAL.

MULCH 2" DEPTH WITH SHREDDED
HARDWOOD BARK. NATURAL IN
COLOR. LEAVE 3" CIRCLE OF BARE
SOIL AT BASE OF TREE TRUNK TO
EXPOSE ROOT FLARE.

NOTE:
1. SHRUB SHALL BEAR SAME RELATION TO FINISH
GRADE AS IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR SLIGHTLY
HIGHER THAN FINISH GRADE UP TO 4" ABOVE
GRADE, IF DIRECTED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
 FOR HEAVY CLAY SOIL AREAS.
2. PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR BROKEN BRANCHES.
3. REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS AND OTHER MATERIALS

shrub planting detail
no scale

SHRUBS PLANTED IN BEDS
SHALL HAVE ENTIRE BED MASS
EXCAVATED AND BACKFILLED
WITH APPROVED PLANT MIX.
PLANTS SHALL NOT BE
INSTALLED IN INDIVIDUAL HOLES.

SCARIFY PLANTING PITSIDES.
RECOMPACT BASE OF TO 4" DEPTH.

REMOVE COLLAR OF ALL FIBER
POTS. POTS SHALL BE CUT TO
PROVIDE FOR ROOT GROWTH.
REMOVE ALL NONORGANIC
CONTAINERS COMPLETELY.

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS COMPLETELY FROM THE
ROOTBALL. CUT AND REMOVE WIRE
BASKET AND BURLAP FROM TOP
HALF OF THE ROOTBALL.

4. GUY TREES ABOVE 3" CAL.. STAKE
DECIDUOUS TREES BELOW 3" CAL.

SCARIFY PLANTING PIT
SIDES. RECOMPACT
BASE OF TO 4" DEPTH.

NOTE:
1. TREES SHALL BEAR SAME
RELATION TO FINISH GRADE AS IT
BORE ORIGINALLY OR SLIGHTLY
HIGHER THAN FINISH GRADE UP TO
6"  ABOVE GRADE, IF DIRECTED BY
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR
HEAVY CLAY SOIL AREAS.

2. DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL
LEADER. PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR
BROKEN BRANCHES.

3. REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS ETC.

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS COMPLETELY FROM THE
ROOTBALL. CUT AND REMOVE WIRE
BASKET AND BURLAP FROM TOP HALF
OF THE ROOTBALL.

MOUND EARTH TO FORM
SAUCER

MULCH 3" DEPTH WITH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
NATURAL IN COLOR. LEAVE 3"
CIRCLE OF BARE SOIL AT BASE OF
TREE TRUNK TO EXPOSE ROOT
FLARE.

2" X 2" HARDWOOD STAKES, MIN.
36" ABOVE GROUND FOR
UPRIGHT, 18" IF ANGLED. DRIVE
STAKES A MIN. 18" INTO
UNDISTURBED GROUND OUTSIDE
ROOTBALL. REMOVE AFTER ONE
YEAR.

STAKE TREES AT FIRST BRANCH
USING 2"-3" WIDE BELT-LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC STRAPS.
ALLOW FOR SOME MINIMAL
FLEXING OF THE TREE. REMOVE
AFTER ONE YEAR.

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE
PLANT MATERIAL.

PLANT TREE SO ROOT FLARE
IS AT OR ABOVE
SURROUNDING GRADE.
REMOVE ROOT BALL  DIRT
TO EXPOSE FLARE IF
NECESSARY AND CUT ANY
GIRDLING ROOTS.

tree planting detail
no scale

perennial planting detail
no scale

PLANTING MIXTURE
12" DEPTH

SUBGRADE

MIN. 1 1/2 " - 2"  DEPTH DOUBLE
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
MULCH SHALL BE NEUTRAL IN
COLOR

quant.
1A

no scale

tree staking detail

Orient staking/guying to
prevailing winds, except on
slopes greater than 3:1 orient to
slope.

Use same staking/guying
orientation for all plants within
each grouping or area.

2"-3' WIDE BELT-LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC
STRAPS
STAKE TREES - JUST BELOW
FIRST BRANCH USING 2 - 3"
WIDE BELT-LIKE NYLON.
CONNECT FROM TREE TO
STAKE OPPOSITE. ALLOW FOR
SOME FLEXING OF THE TREE.
REMOVE AFTER ONE (1) YEAR.

USE 3 HARDWOOD STAKES PER
TREE. 2" X 2" X 8' STAKES. DRIVE
STAKES INTO UNDISTURBED SOIL
6"-8" OUTSIDE OF ROOTBALL TO A
DEPTH OF 18" BELOW TREE PIT.
REMOVE AFTER ONE (1) YEAR.
DO NOT USE WIRE OR ROPE THRU
A HOSE.

landscape maintenance notes:Planting landscape notes:



ST
AT

E
OF MICH IGA

N

ARC
H

I
T

E
T

C

R
E

G
IS

E

E
T

R

L ANDS
EAC P

R

Farmington Hills, MI 48336
24333 Orchard Lake Rd, Suite G

registered Landscape  Architect
Community Land Planner  and

and ASSOCIATES

A

ph. (248) 557-5588
fax. (248) 557-5416

FP
FELINO A. PASCUAL

FP

Do Not scale drawings. Use
figured dimensions only

Copyright

This document and the subject matter
contained therein is proprietary and is
not to be used or reproduced without
the written permission of Felino Pascual
and Associates

sheet no:

project no:

notice:

date:

checked by:

drawn by:

job no./issue/revision date:

sheet title:

project location:

project:

client:

seal:

2021

LS21.076.06  REVIEW  6-11-2021

The location and elevations of existing
underground utilities as shown on this
drawing are only approximate. no guarantee
is either expressed or implied as to the
completeness of accuracy. contractor shall be
exclusively responsible for determining the
exact location and elevation prior to the start
of construction

JP, DK

LS21.076.06

6-08-2021

 of 3

935 E. Silverbell Road
Lake Orion Michigan
48360

Village of Beverly
Hills, Michigan

THE
GODDARD
SCHOOL
Beverly Hills

THE GODDARD
SCHOOL OF LAKE
ORION

31655 Southfield Rd.

SPA      6-30-2021

LS21.076.06    SPA      8-12-2021

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
 R

oa
d

AMENITY PLAN

LS-3

Gould Court

bicycle rackE F decorative bench
seatingG Itrash receptacle

decorative pedestrian
concrete  walkA

6" high concrete planterC

concrete planterB proposedGoddard
RetailSchool

decorative bollard light
J

cafe bistro chairs and tablesD

decorative upright
concrete planterH

specialty pavement
concrete saw scored 45 degrees

DECORATIVE POLE &
LIGHT FIXTURE

BOLLARD LIGHT FIXTURE

TRASH RECEPTICAL

BIKE RACK

BENCH SEAT
CAFE SEATING
AND TABLE

bench seat location

bike rack  location

6" high raised concrete
landscape planter

trash receptacle
location

E

site lighting location

cafe bistro chairs &
tables location

C

D

D

A

I

I specialty pavement concrete
saw scored 45 degrees

decorative bollard
light location

decorative bollard
light locationJ

G

F

cafe bistro chairs &
tables location

bike rack  locationE

J

bike rack  locationE

decorative pedestrian
concrete walk

A

pedestrian site
collector walk

proposed

decorative concrete
planter locationB

trash receptacle
locationF

site amenity reference location plan

CONCRETE PLANTER

36"X 36" CONCRETE PLANTER

36"x36" concrete
planterH

specialty pavement concrete
saw scored 45 degrees

(see photometric plan for details)

decorative pedestrian
concrete walk

G bench seat location



Mounting Height Note
MOUNTING HEIGHT IS MEASURED FROM
GRADE TO FACE OF FIXTURE. POLE HEIGHT
SHOULD BE CALCULATED AS THE MOUNTING
HEIGHT LESS BASE HEIGHT.

Drawing Note
THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN
ELECTRONIC IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE
ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE VERIFIED IN FIELD BY
OTHERS.

G
O

D
D

A
R
D

 S
C
H

O
O

L 
- 

B
EV

ER
LY

 H
IL

LS
PH

O
TO

M
ET

R
IC

 S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

PR
EP

A
R
ED

 F
O

R
: 

S
TO

R
EY

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P,

 L
LC

.
G

A
SS

ER
 B

U
S
H

 A
SS

O
C
IA

TE
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
SS

ER
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer
JD/KB/nae
Date
6/16/2021
Scale
Not to Scale
Drawing No.
#21-63485-V3

1 of 1

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

PROPERTY LINE 0.2 fc 2.0 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1
PARKING LOT 1.6 fc 5.3 fc 0.3 fc 17.7:1 5.3:1 0.3:1

General Note
1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' -
0"

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE
APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT
TO EXISTING / FUTURE FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS
LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS
CALCULATED FROM LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER
CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ILLUMINATING ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED
METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY
MANUFACTURER'S
LUMINAIRE MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL
VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER
VARIABLE FIELD CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS
INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE
FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING
ANALYSIS OF LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.
THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT
IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE
AND
LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING
CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1 2013.
FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS
GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-6705.

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

20.3

0.3

8.2

1.4

4.6

5.8

6.3

0.2

20.5

1.1

12.2

3.1

3.8

0.1

0.7

0.4

0.4

14.6

4.3

0.2

2.6

0.4

0.3

4.8

4.4

0.2

3.5

2.4

0.3

4.3

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

17.1

2.8

0.3

1.2

0.2

0.1

0.5

1.5

3.2

9.4

10.6

9.3

10.0

10.0

2.4

18.2

0.3

0.1

0.3

1.0

0.2

0.2

0.5

1.2

1.0

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.2

1.9

1.1

4.2

4.1

3.7

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.3

0.5

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.4

0.8

1.6

0.2

0.1

0.4

1.0

1.6

2.1

2.8

2.5

2.5

1.8

1.1

5.4

7.8

4.9

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.4

2.0

1.5

2.1

3.0

1.9

2.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.6

0.8

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.8

5.5

7.6

4.3

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

2.0

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.2

2.3

1.1

2.3

5.2

3.7

2.0

1.6

0.3

0.1

1.7

6.5

8.6

2.0

0.3

0.1

0.9

5.2

1.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

1.6

6.1

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

5.6

14.1

21.3

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.4

2.0

3.5

3.0

3.0

3.7

2.5

2.8

3.7

2.4

1.3

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.6

2.9

6.0

4.6

3.7

6.2

4.4

3.8

6.1

3.7

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

2.0

4.9

3.9

2.9

4.7

3.2

2.5

3.9

2.2

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.3

1.0

0.9

1.0

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.9

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.7

1.3

0.9

1.5

1.9

2.6

2.7

2.5

2.1

1.8

1.9

2.4

3.3

3.5

3.2

2.1

1.3

0.7

2.4

2.9

3.4

4.2

3.5

2.1

1.7

1.9

2.5

3.7

4.9

3.4

2.2

1.2

0.6

1.0

1.6

2.8

2.6

1.4

0.7

1.3

0.6

0.8

1.5

2.3

3.3

3.9

3.2

2.2

1.3

0.6

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.2

2.1

2.9

2.9

2.8

1.9

1.1

0.7

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

0.7

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

0.7

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.1

2.9

2.8

2.7

1.8

1.1

0.6

0.4

0.8

1.6

2.3

3.4

3.8

3.0

2.1

1.3

0.6

0.4

0.8

1.6

2.4

1.3

0.7

0.4

0.8

1.5

2.4

4.0

3.4

2.2

1.3

0.8

0.8

1.4

2.4

3.4

3.5

3.2

2.3

1.7

1.1

0.7

1.0

1.5

1.9

1.9

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.4

0.7

1.2

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

1.8

2.1

3.4

3.9

2.3

2.8

2.2

2.8

1.8

1.8

1.2

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.3

21.9

5.3

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.1

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.4 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.4 1.0 1.6 1.1 0.7

1.7

1.9

1.5

1.9

1.4

1.9

1.5

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.10.10.20.30.20.20.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0
0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.0

Plan View
Scale - 1" = 20ft

Ordering Note
FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Descriptio
n

Lumens
Per Lamp Wattage MH

A
3 Lithonia Lighting KAD LED 20C 700 40K

R4 MVOLT HS
KAD LED 4417 45 14-0"

A2
2 Lithonia Lighting KAD LED 30C 700 40K

R4 MVOLT
KAD LED 8369 138 14'-0"

B
10 Holophane CHBOLED P30 40K xxxxx

NIO5 AWS
CHBOLED 1037 24 3'-6"

DL
6 BEGA Converted by

LUMCat V 14.02.2017 /
H.R.

22 392 22392K4 2909 22.9 9'-0"

PB

3 Holophane GSLF3 P10 40K XXXXX
SYM

GlasWerks
Luminescen
t LED
Hallbrook,
P10
Performanc
e Package,
4000K CCT,
Symmetric
distribution

4256 30 9'-0"

RDL
32 Focal Point FLC4D-RO-1000L-120-

LD1-T/LC4-RO-1000L-
35K-DN-FL1-CD-NP

FLC4D-RO 1103 11.37 10'-0"



20
'-0

"

24'-0"

40'-0"

20
'-0

"

6'
-0

"
C

AN
O

PY
 W

ID
TH

CANOPY LENGTH

30'-0"

24
'-0

"

25
'-6

"

36'-0"

C
AN

O
PY

 W
ID

TH

CANOPY LENGTH

6'
-0

"

#4 x 24" REBAR
GRADE
BRICK EDGE
6" x 6" TREATED TIMBER

1 5/8" IMPACT COURSE (BLACK)
3/8" TOPCOAT COURSE (COLOR)

5" COMPACTED GRAVEL FILL,

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
(BY DEVELOPER/BUILDER)
97% COMPACTION

3/4" CLEAN CHIPPED STONE
INSTALLED BY PLAYGROUND
INSTALLER

EXCAVATION BY DEVELOPER

SCALE:

PRESCHOOL PLAY STRUCTURE10
1/8" = 1'-0"

SCALE:

INFANT/ TODDLER PLAY STRUCTURE09
1/8" = 1'-0"

SCALE:

PRESCHOOL PLAYGROUND RENDERING12
N.T.S.

SCALE:

TODDLER PLAYGROUND RENDERING11
N.T.S.

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

REFER TO 10/C1.2

REFER TO 09/C1.2

1. PLAYGROUND STRUCTURE AND SHADE STRUCTURE APPROVALS OR PERMITS IF
REQUIRED. APPROVALS AND PERMITTING MAY BE REQUIRED FOR COLOR SCHEME,
HEIGHT, MANUFACTURER DESIGN METHODS, ETC.

2. UTILITIES CANNOT BE LOCATED UNDER OR OVER PLAYGROUND BOXES.

3. ELECTRIC AND WATER ARE NEEDED ON SITE, FOR THE PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS USE.  IF
NOT, OTHER PRIOR ARRANGEMENTS SHALL BE MADE.

4. SOILS WITHIN THE PLAYGROUND BOX DIMENSIONS SHOULD BE SUITABLE FOR SLAB AT
GRADE INSTALLATIONS. SOILS SHOULD NOT CONTAIN DEBRIS AND COMPACTED TO 97% IN
ACCEPTED INCREMENTS CONTAINING SUITABLE SOIL.

5. PROVIDE GODDARD SYSTEM INC.'S PROJECT MANAGER WITH A TIMELINE FOR
PLAYGROUND INSTALLATION.  ROUGH GRADE IS REQUIRED AND SIDEWALKS SHALL BE
INSTALLED PRIOR TO PLAYGROUND INSTALLATION, SOD, FENCE AND PARKING LOT TOP
COAT.

6. LOCATE PLAYGROUND BOXES PER SITE PLAN, EXCAVATED 7" DEEP.  PLAYGROUND BOXES
CANNOT EXCEED A MAXIMUM 2% GRADE. (DTL. 2/C3.1)

7. SUB-GRADE BACKFILL MUST BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST 97% AND SHOULD NOT
CONTAIN MATERIALS SUCH AS LARGE ROCKS, SCRAP WOOD, CONCRETE SPOILS, ETC.
PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS NEED TO DRILL ACCURATE HOLES FOR PLAYGROUND POLE
INSTALLATION.

8. INSTALL DRAINAGE SYSTEM TO EXCAVATED PLAYGROUND BOXES PER SITE PLAN. (DTL.
13/C3.1)

9. ENSURE ADEQUATE AREA FOR PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS.  STAGING AREA NEEDED TO
UNLOAD AND PRE-ASSEMBLE APPROX. 1,000 CUBIC FOOT SHIPMENT OF PLAYGROUND
EQUIPMENT.  HOLDING AREA NEEDED TO RECEIVE DELIVERY OF APPROXIMATELY 40-50
TONS OF CRUSHED STONE. PARKING AREA NEEDED FOR TWO TRUCKS AND ONE 30'
TRAILER OF EXCAVATING EQUIPMENT.

10. IN ORDER TO AVOID POSSIBLE DAMAGE, PARKING LOTS SHOULD NOT HAVE TOPCOAT
APPLIED AND FENCING SHOULD NOT BE INSTALLED UNTIL PLAYGROUND IS COMPLETE.  IF
FENCING IS INSTALLED, LEAVE OUT NECESSARY SECTIONS TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO
PLAYGROUND AREA.

11. ONCE COMPACTED CRUSH STONE BASE, BORDER, AND EQUIPMENT ARE IN PLACE, THEY
SHOULD NOT BE DRIVEN OR WALKED ON AND SHOULD NOT BE USED FOR STORAGE AREA.

12. PLAYGROUND INSTALLATION DESCRIBED ABOVE SHOULD TAKE APPROXIMATELY ONE TO
FIVE DAYS, DEPENDING ON SITE CONDITIONS, WEATHER, INSTALLER CREW SIZE, ETC.

13. INSTALLATION OF POUR-IN-PLACE SURFACING USUALLY TAKES PLACE ONE TO TWO
WEEKS AFTER PLAYGROUND IS INSTALLED, DEPENDING MAINLY ON WEATHER
CONDITIONS.

14. GENERALLY ONLY THREE OR FOUR PARKING SPACES ARE NEEDED FOR SURFACING
INSTALLERS.  (ONE OR TWO VEHICLES AND A MIXER STAGING AREA)

15. TYPICALLY, TWO MEN MIX THE SURFACING PRODUCT IN THE PARKING LOT AND
TRANSPORT BY WHEELBARROW TO PLAYGROUNDS WHERE IT IS POURED AND
TROWELED.  THEREFORE, NO SPECIAL ALLOWANCES ARE NECESSARY (FENCING CAN BE
INSTALLED AND FINISH LANDSCAPING CAN BE COMPLETED)

16. THIS IS USUALLY A TWO-DAY INSTALLATION, DEPENDING MAINLY ON WEATHER
CONDITIONS.  IMPACT COURSE APPLIED ON DAY ONE, AND TOPCOAT (COLOR) APPLIED ON
DAY TWO.

17. ONCE THE TOPCOAT APPLICATION IS COMPLETE, THE BINDING AGENTS WILL TAKE A
MINIMUM 24 HOURS TO CURE.  DURING THAT TIME THERE IS TO BE ABSOLUTELY NO
WALKING ON, PLACING OBJECTS ON, OR ALLOWING ANY DUST TO ACCUMULATE ON THE
TOPCOAT SURFACE.

18. FINISH GRADING AND LANDSCAPING MUST BE THE SAME ELEVATION AT THE PLAYGROUND
BORDERS.

19. ENSURE THAT THE SITE IS SECURE AND THAT OTHER CONTRACTORS WILL NOT BE
STORING, WORKING, WALKING, ETC. ON FINISHED PLAYGROUNDS, SURFACES OR
BORDERS.

GENERAL NOTES:
DEVELOPER/GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHOULD BE IN CONSTANT COMMUNICATION WITH GSI TO
SCHEDULE DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF THE PLAYGROUND STRUCTURES. PLAYGROUND
INSTALLERS TRAVEL LONG DISTANCES AND IT IS IMPERATIVE THE SITE IS PROPERLY
PREPARED AS SPECIFIED TO AVOID COSTLY MOBILIZATION, SHIPPING AND STORAGE FEES.

GSI'S PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS TRAVEL GREAT DISTANCES, INCURRING EXPENSES FOR
BOTH TRANSPORTATION AND LODGING.  IN ADDITION THEY ARE REQUIRED TO RESERVE
RENTAL MACHINERY.  IF THEY ARE TURNED AWAY BECAUSE THE SITE IS NOT READY, A
TRAVEL CHARGE WILL APPLY. THIS CHARGE COULD BE SIGNIFICANT ($50.00 PER MAN-HOUR
FOR A CREW OF FIVE, LODGING AT $175 PER ROOM PER NIGHT, AND EQUIPMENT RENTAL
DEPOSITS).  THEREFORE, FOLLOWING ALL OF THE ABOVE GUIDELINES, ESPECIALLY WITH
RESPECT TO DISCLOSING EXCESSIVELY ROCKY CONDITIONS, PROHIBITING THE USE OF
LARGE ROCKS, CEMENT, ETC. IN BACKFILL MATERIALS, AND PROVIDING THE PROJECT
MANAGER AN ACCURATE TIMELINE, WILL SAVE BOTH MONEY AND TIME.

DEVELOPER / GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S
PLAYGROUND RESPONSIBILITIES

SCALE:

POUR-IN-PLACE PLAY SURFACING04
1 1/2" = 1'-0"

SCALE: N/A

GSI-1.0

PL
A

YG
R

O
U

N
D

 D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 1



1 5/8" IMPACT COURSE (BLACK)

3/8" TOPCOAT COURSE (COLOR)
BY PLAYGROUND INSTALLER

5" COMPACTED GRAVEL FILL,
3/4" CLEAN CHIPPED STONE
INSTALLED BY PLAYGROUND
INSTALLER

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
(BY DEVELOPER/BUILDER)
97% COMPACTION

6" DRAINAGE

#4 x 24" REBAR
GRADE
BRICK EDGE
6" x 6" TREATED TIMBER

EXCAVATION BY DEVELOPER

24"

FINISHED STUB-OUT

G.C. TO LEAVE DRAIN PIPE 12"
ABV. GRADE FOR PLAYGROUND
INSTALLER TO TIE INTO

℄
4'-0"

2'
-0

"

2'-0"

PLAYGROUND DRAIN CAP BY
PLAY EQUIPMENT INSTALLER

PROVIDE A 6" DRAIN STUB IN
PLAYGROUND BEDDING FOR
CONNECTION BY PLAYGROUND
EQUIPMENT INSTALLER 2'-0" IN
FROM EACH BORDER IN LOW
CORNER

6"

6"

6" x6" TREATED TIMBER
BELOW PLAYGROUND
SURFACE, RE: 05/C3.1

UTILITY NOTES

SCALE:

PLAYGROUND DRAINAGE DETAIL05
1-1/2" = 1'-0"

1. THERE SHALL BE NO UTILITIES RUN UNDER  PLAYGROUND AREAS.

2. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO COORDINATE AND ORDER ALL NEW
SERVICES, LOCATE AND MAINTAIN IN SERVICE ALL EXISTING UTILITIES ENCOUNTERED
DURING  CONSTRUCTION UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED IN  THE DRAWINGS.  ANY PIPING,
WHICH CAN BE  REMOVED DURING CONSTRUCTION WITHOUT UNDUE  INTERRUPTION OF
SERVICE MAY BE REMOVED AND  REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR, AT HIS EXPENSE  WITH
THE PERMISSION OF THE OWNER.

3. BEFORE WORKING WITH OR AROUND EXISTING  UTILITIES, THE APPLICABLE UTILITY
COMPANY  SHALL BE CONTACTED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

4. WHEN CONNECTIONS ARE TO BE MADE TO EXISTING  PIPING AND STRUCTURES OR WHERE
CONSTRUCTION  IS IN THE VICINITY OF EXISTING PIPING, THE  LOCATION AND ELEVATION
OF THE EXISTING PIPING  SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED. NOTIFICATION SHALL BE  GIVEN TO
THE OWNER IF THE EXISTING PIPING IS  FOUND TO BE DIFFERENT THAN THAT SHOWN ON
THE  DRAWINGS.

5. FOR CLARITY OF THESE DRAWINGS, PIPES MAY  NOT BE DRAWN TO SCALE OR EXACTLY
LOCATED.

6. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SURFACE MOUNT EXTERIOR GRADE PHONE CABINET AND
PHONE. 48" MIN. TO 60" MAX. AFF. TO PROTRUDE 4" MAX. FROM FACE OF WALL. SEE
HOFFMAN ATC12124S TYPE 1 STEEL CABINET. PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL COLOR.

7. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE INTERNET SERVICE AND COAX INSTALL AND LOCATIONS
WITH OWNER AND GSI REPRESENTATIVE.

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SCALE:

PLAYGROUND DRAINAGE DETAIL09
1/2" = 1'-0"

SCALE: N/A'

GSI-2.0

PL
A

YG
R

O
U

N
D

 D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 2



















EXHIBIT B - PHASING PLAN 
 

 
P:\2021\21705\DOCS\Exhibits for Development Agreement\Proposed Constrcution Phasing.docx 

 

 
 DATE:  October 14, 2021 

 RE:  Goddard of Beverly Hills Development Agreement 

  Proposed Construction Phasing Plan 

 

The following outlines the proposed milestones for the construction phasing plan for the 
Goddard of Beverly Hills Preschool and Annex Building. 
The Preschool and all supporting sitework, including the entrance drive represents Phase 1 of 
the Construction; while the Annex and all ROW work directly in front of the Annex represents 
Phase 2 of the construction. 
  

A. Phase 1 - Preschool and supporting sitework: 

1. October 2021; Issue for Bids and Permits 

2. November 2021; Bids Due 

3. November 2021; Award Construction Contract 

4. March 2022; Foundations Complete 

5. May 2022; Building Shell Complete 

6. July 2022; Interior Complete/Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 

7. October 2022; Landscape Complete 

 

B. Phase 2 – Annex and Sitework adjacent to Annex:  

1. October 2021; Issue for Bids and Permits 

2. November 2021; Bids Due 

3. November 2021; Award Construction Contract 

4. April 2022; Foundations Complete 

5. July 2022; Building Shell Complete 

6. September 2022; Vanilla Box Interior Complete 

7. October 2022; Landscape Complete. 

 
 

  
 
cc:    Kellie McDonald, Goddard of Beverly Hills 

   



1

aerial - northeast

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



2

concept image - northeast entry    

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



3

concept image - north

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



4

concept image - south

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



5

concept image - west

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



6

concept image - plaza view 1

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



7

concept image - plaza view 2

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



GODDARDS SCHOOL OF 
BEVERLY HILLS

31655 SOUTHFIELD RD

WEST SIDE SOUTHFIELD NORTH OF 13 MILE

B-1 BUSINESS ZONING DISTRICT

VILLAGE CENTER OVERLAY DISTRICT



PROJECT SCOPE

• 1.5 ACRES – IRREGULAR SHAPE

• MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT WITH 2 BUILDINGS
• REAR – 2-STORY, APPROX. 16,000 SF FOR PRE-SCHOOL/CHILD CARE 

• FRONT – 2-STORY, APPROX. 5,000 SF OFFICE AND RETAIL

• PARKING REQUIREMENTS
• 27 CHILDCARE

• 16 OFFICE/RETAIL

• 43 REQUIRED

• 57 PROVIDED

• 14 SURPLUS



PROJECT REVIEW HISTORY

• JULY 21, 2021 – VC REVIEW AND RECOMMEND TO PC

• JULY 28, 2021 & AUGUST 25, 2021 – PC REVIEW
• RECOMMENDED VC APPROVAL

• SUBJECT TO VARIANCES

• SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 – ZBA 
• DULY NOTICED PUBLIC HEARING(S)

• 2 VARIANCES GRANTED



ZBA VARIANCES

• SECTION 22.08.370(b)
• ORDINANCE REQUIRES 150 SF OUTDOOR PLAY AREA PER CHILD

• RESULTS IN 30,000 SF OUTDOOR PLAY AREA (100’ X 300’) REQUIRED

• GRANTED 10,240 SF (STATE REQUIRES MINIMUM 1,200 SF)

• SECTION 22.08.370(c)
• ORDINANCE REQUIRES 1,500 FOOT SEPARATION BETWEEN LICENSED FACILITIES

• ADJACENT TO LICENSED FACILITY

• GRANTED ZERO SEPARATION

• IT WAS DETERMINED BY VILLAGE MANAGER, VILLAGE ATTORNEY, VILLAGE CONTRACT PLANNER AND MYSELF 
THAT THE VILLAGE ORDINANCE REGULATING CHILDCARE UNINTENTIONALLY LUMPED TOGETHER CHILD CARE 
HOMES AND CHILD CARE CENTERS UNDER THE SAME CATEGORY (FACILITIES) RESULTING IN ESTABLISHING 
OVERREACHING PLAY AREA AND LOCATIONAL CRITERIA. THIS CRITERIA IS INTENDED TO APPLY TO RESIDENTIAL 
OR GROUP HOMES NOT COMMERCIAL CENTERS. ZBA SUGGESTS MODIFYING ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE 
TO CORRECT THE ERROR.



PROJECT ATTRIBUTES

• STRIKING ARCHITECTURE

• BEAUTIFUL LANDSCAPING

• PUBLIC USE OF PROPERTY
• COORDINATED THROUGH THE VILLAGE

• ACCESS TO PUBLIC SPACE

• DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT TO ENSURE PROJECT DEVELOPED IN A 
COORDINATED MANNER AND PROVIDES PROVISIONS FOR 
COMPLIANCE WITH VILLAGE DEVELOPENT REGULATIONS
• SEE OCTOBER 14, 2021, LETTER FROM VILLAGE ATTORNEY



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT     WHAT’S IN IT?

• STANDARD ITEMS – PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT, PROJECT HISTORY, 
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION, PROJECT PLANS 
AND BUILDING ELEVATIONS

• FLEXIBILITY PROVISIONS – NO SIDEWALK ALONG GODDARD, 
REDUCED WINDOW FAÇADE ALONG SOUTHFIELD, REDUCED 
DISTANCE BETWEEN DRIVEWAYS, PROPOSED LIGHTS ALONG 
SOUTHFIELD SUBJECT TO ROAD COMMISSION

• REFERENCE TO ZBA VARIANCES



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT cont’d

• PUBLIC BENEFIT
• ALLOW PUBLIC TO USE PROPERTY TWO (2) DAYS PER YEAR FOR VILLAGE 

SPONSORED EVENT

• N/S CROSS EASEMENT TO ACCOMMODATE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AS MAY BE 
FEASIBLE

• AGREE TO MAKE AVAILABLE AND SELL NORTHERN 6 FEET OF PROPERRY TO 
VILLAGE OR THIRD-PARTY DEVELOPER FOR DEVELOPMENT OF AN APPROVED 
COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT PLAN CONSISTENT WITH B DISTRICT 
REGULATIONS AND VISION OF VILLAGE CENTER OVERLAY PLAN



OTHER

• PERFORMANCE MEASURES
• $200,000.00 PERFORMANCE BOND

• ENSURES PROJECT COMPLETION OR ALLOWS VILLAGE TO USE FUNDS TO SECURE 
UNFINISHED SITE INCLUDING DEMOLITION TO ENSURE PUBLIC SAFETY

• $75,000.00 LANDSCAPE BOND
• ENSURES LANDSCAPING IS COMPLETE AND IN PLACE PRIOR TO ISSUANANCE OF 

CERIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 

• PHASING
• 2 PHASES

• 1ST BUILDING - CHILCARE BUILDING IN REAR

• 2ND BUILDING – OFFICE RETAIL IN FRONT







B3 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 Chris Wilson, Village Manager 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Filming Fees at Parks 
 
Date:   October 28, 2021            
 
Occasionally, private companies film commercials at parks within Beverly Hills.  The Parks & Recreation 
Board has discussed requiring an application and fee for commercial filming on park property.  Board 
members compared applications and fees from surrounding communities to help come up with a 
recommendation to Council.  
 
The proposed fee would be for filming for commercial purposes only. 
 
At their October 21, 2021 meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board voted to recommend the Village 
Council require a fee of $125.00, an application, and a certificate of insurance to be submitted to the 
Village of Beverly Hills for any commercial filming on park property.  
 
Suggested Resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council hereby requires an application, a Certificate of Liability 
Insurance naming the Village of Beverly Hills as an additional insured, and a fee of $125.00 to be 
submitted to the Village of Beverly Hills Administration for approval prior to any commercial filming on 
Beverly Hills park property.   
 



B4 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: July 2022 Concert in the Park 
 
Date:   October 28, 2021            
 
At their October 21, 2021 meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board reviewed a request for booking a band 
at the Village’s July 22, 2022 Concert in the Park. Danny D and the Vagabonds are a Rod Stewart tribute 
band and their performance also includes bits of Motown, 70s, 80s, and 90s hits.  They are proposing a 
90-minute show with costume changes and an 8-piece band.  The price range for this performance is 
$1,000.00-1,200.00, depending on whether a sound technician is available. 
 
The Village rents a stage from Oakland County Parks for the Concert in the Park events in the amount of 
$550.00.  A standard facility/property use agreement has been reviewed by the Village Attorney who 
found it to be in order (memo and agreement attached). 
 
The Beverly Hills Parks & Recreation Board recommended the Village Council authorize the Board to 
host a Concert in the Park featuring Danny D and the Vagabonds on Friday, July 22, 2022 at Beverly Park 
and to authorize Administration to execute a Facilities/Property Use Agreement with Oakland County 
Parks for the stage rental in a total amount not to exceed $1,800.00.   
 
Suggested Resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council authorizes the Parks & Recreation Board to host a 
Concert in the Park featuring Danny D and the Vagabonds on Friday, July 22, 2022 at Beverly Park and 
authorizes Administration to execute a Facilities/Property Use Agreement with Oakland County Parks for 
the stage rental in an amount not to exceed $1,800.00.  Funds are available in account #101-747-894.00. 
 
 
 
Attachments 

























  B5 

  1 

Memorandum 

To: Honorable John George, Village President; Village Council 

From: Chris D. Wilson, Village Manager 

CC: Kevin Lawrence, Public Services Director, Sheila McCarthy, Finance 

Director 

Date: 10/29/2021 

Re: Village of Beverly Hills Residential Backflow Prevention Program  

Attached for your review and consideration is a draft proposal for a program that 
would incentivize and provide reimbursement for homes that met eligibility criteria to 
receive reimbursement through the Village of up to 50% of the cost of installation of 
a backflow preventor or other pre-approved device or procedure at their home.    
Village Administration has worked with Council and our engineers to identify and 
develop a cost effective program that will provide protection for our residents from 
potential combined sewer backups in their homes.  Village Administration feels this 
program meets those goals.   

Village Administration will go over with Council the eligibility criteria and operation of 
the program at the meeting and answer any questions that Council may have.  If 
Council is in agreement with the terms of the program, Village Administration is 
prepared to implement the program when approved.   

Recommendation: 
The Beverly Hills Village Council approves of the Residential Backflow Prevention 
Program as submitted and the allocation of up to $250,000 in a dedicated account 
within the General Fund to administer the program.   



 
 

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 

RESIDENTIAL BACKFLOW 

PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 

The Village of Beverly Hills consists of just over 4,200 separate residential structures, 

approximately 30% of which are located in an area with a combined sewer system.  The 

Village has made significant efforts to ensure that our combined sewer systems function 

adequately in both dry weather conditions and during significant rain events.  However, 

no sewer system can accommodate the most severe storms; storms that are occurring 

with greater frequency.  Additionally, many homeowners have sought to utilize below 

grade or basement levels as additional living or storage spaces.  Homeowners making 

use of such space would like some assurance that the materials and furnishings stored 

in these areas are safe and free from moisture or contamination.  This is particularly true 

in combined sewer areas, where sewer backflow into a residence would likely contain 

some element of municipal sanitary sewer.   

 

There are multiple options that a homeowner can pursue to mitigate against sewer 

backups or the monetary damage these backups can cause.  One of these options would 

be the installation of a sewer backflow preventer on their residential sewer line.   A 

backflow preventer allows sanitary sewer from the home to discharge during normal dry 

weather flows but prevents municipal sanitary sewer from backflowing into the home 

during significant rain events.  When properly installed and maintained, backflow 

preventers have proven to be an effective tool in preventing sanitary sewer backups.  

Accordingly, the Village has an interest in encouraging homeowners who could benefit 

from such a device in having one properly installed and maintained.   

  

The Village of Beverly Hills will implement and fund a residential backflow preventor 

installation program to assist eligible homeowners who could benefit from a backflow 

preventor or other similar pre-approved device or procedure with financial and technical 

guidance in getting such a device installed.  To qualify, applicants will need to own a 

home in either the George W. Kuhn (GWK) drainage district or in the combined areas of 



the Evergreen Farmington Sewage Disposal System (EFSDS). A map of the areas of the 

Village that would be eligible to participate in the program is attached. If homeowners are 

unsure if they live in an area that would qualify for this program they can contact the 

Village at 248.646.6404. 

 

Eligible homes must have a basement or below grade area of livable or conditioned 

space.  Applicants who qualify will be eligible to receive reimbursement up to fifty percent 

(50%) of the cost of installation of a backflow preventer or other device on their home, up 

to a maximum of Two Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($2,500).  Eligible applicants will 

need to obtain all required permits and inspections through the Village of Beverly Hills 

and sign a release.  An application form, building permit and instructions are attached to 

this letter and can also be found at www.villagebeverlyhills.com.   Ultimate approval of 

devices other than a backflow preventor for reimbursement will rest with the Village 

Manager.  The Village Council will allocate adequate funds to administer this program 

and the program shall continue until all allocated funds are dispersed or the program is 

rescinded.   

 

For residents who do not qualify for this program or wish not to participate in the program 

the Village has published information on how to properly clean and dispose of materials 

in the event of a sanitary sewer backup.  This information can be found at 

www.villagebevelryhills.com.   

http://www.villagebeverlyhills.com/
http://www.villagebevelryhills.com/


 

Residential Backflow Prevention Program 

Application for Reimbursement 

Please complete the following information to request reimbursement through the Residential Backflow 

Prevention Program.  

 

Name ___________________________________Telephone Number ___________________ 

 

Address _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date of installation ____________________ Cost of installation ________________________ 

 

Please attach a copy of the paid invoice to this application.  

 

 

________________________________________ ______________________ 

Signature       Date 

 

 

For Office Use Only 
 
Plumbing Permit Number: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Contractor Name: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Final Inspection Approval: __________________________________________________ 
 
District: (circle one) George W. Kuhn or Evergreen Farmington Sanitary Drain_______________ 
 
Reimbursement Amount: _________________________________________________________ 
 
Village Approval: ________________________________________________________________ 





REVISED 06-2020 

Invoice#___________  
Check # ___________ 

   
PLUMBING PERMIT APPLICATION 

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS  
BUILDING AND PLANNING 

18500 W 13 MILE RD 
BEVERLY HILLS, MICHIGAN 48025 

P: 248-646-6404 F: 248-646-3703 
Date:          BUILDING PERMIT #    
 

Job Address:          Suite #      
Lot:     Subdivision:           
Owner:          Phone:       

Bldg.  New       Add’n  Alter    Res.  Comm.  Ind. 

Company Name:      Contact:     Phone:    
Address:       City:   State:  Zip:   
License #    Federal ID #    MESC #     Comp. Carrier    
Email:          Check if you would like email notification of any violations 

ITEM Number Fee Total ITEM Number Fee Total 
Backflow Preventer/Disconnect  30.00 

 

 Sump  30.00  
Backwater Check Valve  24.00  Urinal  18.00  
Bathtub  18.00  Washer, Automatic, Standpipe  18.00  
Dental Chair  18.00  Water Closet (toilet)  18.00  
Dishwasher  18.00  Water Heater  18.00  
Drinking Fountain  18.00  Water Distribution ½”  24.00  
Floor Drain  18.00  Water Distribution 1”   30.00  
Garbage Disposal  18.00  Water Distribution 1½ – 2”  43.00  
Grease Trap  24.00  Water Distribution 2½”  49.00  
Humidifier  18.00  Water Distribution 3”  62.00  
Ice Maker  18.00  Water Distribution 4”  68.00  
Laundry Tray  18.00  Water Distribution Over 4”  81.00  
Medical Gas (Each System)  30.00  Water Treatment Device  37.00  
Medical Gas Vacuum Pump/Air Compr  43.00  Weeping Tile Trap & Inside Drain  37.00  
Pump & Water Lift  30.00  Unlisted Fixtures/Item  30.00  
Roof Sump  18.00      
Safe Waste  18.00      
Shower Trap  18.00  Minimum Permit fee  75.00  
Sill Cock/Hose Bib  18.00  Contractor registration  15.00  
Sink, Bar  30.00      
Sink, Lav  18.00      
Stacks, Conductor, Vents, AAV  24.00      
 
** If the Backflow Prevention Device serves a Fire Suppression System then a separate fire suppression system permit is required 
Homeowner Affidavit 
I hereby certify that the work described on this permit application shall be installed by myself in my own home in which I am living or about to 
occupy.  All work shall be installed in accordance with the State of Michigan Building Code and shall not be enclosed, covered up or occupied until it 
has been inspected and approved.  I will cooperate with the Building Inspector and assume all responsibility to arrange for necessary inspections. 
Section 23a of the state construction code act of 1972, 1972PA 230, MCL 125.1523A, prohibits a person from conspiring to circumvent the 
licensing requirements of this state relating to persons who are to perform work on a residential building or a residential structure.  
Violators of Section 23a are subject to civil fines. 

 
Applicant Signature           

Homeowner’s signature indicates compliance with homeowner’s affidavit 
 

 

P
ro

je
c

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
Ap

pl
ica

nt
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

P
L

U
M

B
IN

G
 



  B6 

  1 

Memorandum 

To: Honorable John George, Village President; Village Council 

From: Chris D. Wilson, Village Manager 

CC: Kevin Lawrence, Public Services Director, Sheila McCarthy, Finance 

Director 

Date: 10/29/2021 

Re:  Village Local Road Concrete Replacement Change Order 

Village Administration and our engineers have identified additional quantities of concrete 
replacement that can be done within the funds Council has budgeted for this work this year and 
are in need of replacement.  The majority of this additional work is along White Oaks Trail.  The 
contractor has agreed to do the approximately 700 square yards of work on the existing contract 
and at those contract prices.   

The Village allocated $500,000 for concrete replacement for this Fiscal Year.  The contract 
amount as awarded was $372,825.  The estimated price for this additional work is $50,548.50.  
This would bring the total contract price to $423,373.50.    

Village Administration has reviewed this proposal and believes it to be in the best interest of the 
Village to proceed with the additional work at this time.  

 

RECOMMENDATION … be it so resolved that the Village Council approve and authorize 
the Village Manager to execute Change Order No. 1 for the Village of Beverly Hills 2021 
Concrete Patch Repair Program in the amount of $50,548.50.  Funds for this work are 
available in Fund #203-451-810.03. 

 



VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS Date: 28-Oct-21

2021 CONCRETE PATCH REPAIR PROGRAM HRC Job No. 20210379

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1

ENGINEER: OWNER: CONTRACTOR:

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. Cipparrone Contracting, Inc.

555 Hulet Drive 18500 Thirteen Mile Road 30555 Southfield Rd., suite 250

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48303 Beverly Hills, Michigan 48025 Southfield, MI 48076

The Contractor is directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents.

CHANGE ORDER ITEM 1:

Description:

 

WCD #1 Remove and replace pavement patches on White Oaks Dr as marked by the Village or the Village Engineer.

Reason for Change:  

PROPOSAL ITEM 

NO.

ITEM OF WORK UNIT INCREASE \ 

(DECREASE) 

QUANTITY

UNIT BID 

PRICE

AMOUNT

INCREASE

AMOUNT 

DECREASE

75 Mobilization, Max 5%                                        LS 1 $820.00 $820.00

76 Color Audio-Video Route Survey                   LS 1 $240.00 $240.00

77 Pavt Repr, Rem, Special                                     Syd 701 $14.00 $9,814.00

78 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch, Special      Syd 701 $43.00 $30,143.00

79 Subgrade Undercutting, Type II, Special (As Needed) Cyd 95 $20.50 $1,947.50

80 1” x 3” Crushed Concrete, Special (As Needed)   Ton 130 $25.00 $3,250.00

81 Large Aperture Geogrid (As Needed)           Syd 290 $4.50 $1,305.00

82 21AA Aggregate, Special (As Needed)                Ton 60 $24.50 $1,470.00

83 Site Restoration                                                LS 1 $575.00 $575.00

84 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control                   LS 1 $274.00 $274.00

85 Maintaining Traffic                                       LS 1 $710.00 $710.00

86 Observation Crew Days Days

SUBTOTAL CHANGE ORDER NO. 1, ITEM NO. 1 $50,548.50

TOTAL NET CHANGE for CHANGE ORDER NO. 1

Original Contract Price $372,825.00

Total of previous change orders to date $0.00

Current Contract Price adjusted by the previous Change Orders $372,825.00

The Contract Price due to this Change Order will be $50,548.50

The revised Contract Price including this Change Order $423,373.50

Contract Agreement Date: Ocober 11, 2021

Original Contract Completion Date: November 19, 2021

Village of Beverly Hills

Per the request of the Village



VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS Date: 28-Oct-21

2021 CONCRETE PATCH REPAIR PROGRAM HRC Job No. 20210379

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1

ENGINEER: OWNER: CONTRACTOR:

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. Cipparrone Contracting, Inc.

555 Hulet Drive 18500 Thirteen Mile Road 30555 Southfield Rd., suite 250

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48303 Beverly Hills, Michigan 48025 Southfield, MI 48076

Village of Beverly Hills

Authorized By: Date:

Chris Wilson

Village Manager, Village of Beverly Hills

Recommended By: Date:

John Nagle, P.E. 

Staff Engineer, Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc.

Accepted By: Date:

Giovanni D'Agostino 

Project Manager, Cipparrone Conctracting, Inc.



  B7 

  1 

Memorandum 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council 

CC: Sheila McCarthy; Finance Director 

From: Chris D. Wilson, Village Manager 

Date: 10/29/2021 

Re: Liability Insurance Renewal 

On the agenda for Council to review and consider is the renewal of the Village’s Liability 
Insurance Policy.  This policy renews on November 1 of this year.    
 
The terms of this policy are the same as the current policy:  A self-insured retention of 
$75,000 for liability and, for vehicle and physical damage a self-insured retention of $15,000 
per vehicle and $30,000 per occurrence.  The liability limit is $10,000,000 with various other 
limits listed on page 3.  There is also a stop loss policy that would limit all liability in any 
village fiscal year to $150,000.  The cost for retaining this stop-loss policy is $4,753.  The 
stop-loss policy is detailed on page 8. 
 
The total cost for the liability policy for one year is $136,266.  This is a slight increase of our 
premium for last year of $130,034.  Our carrier, Michigan Municipal Risk Management 
Authority (MMRMA) is also requesting a contribution to our loss retention fund of $40,000 
upon renewal.  The total premium, stop loss cost and retention fund contribution is 
$181,019.  With the contribution of $40,000 to our loss retention fund the Village will have in 
excess of $300,000 retained to cover loses.   
 
Upon renewal, the Village will be eligible for a disbursement through MMRMA of $82,184.  
Given the current strong position of our retention fund I am recommending that the 
disbursement amount be allocated back to the General Fund.  Village Administration has 
reviewed the liability insurance renewal and recommends approval at this time.   
 
Suggested Resolution – Resolve that the Village of Beverly Hills Council approve and 
authorize the Village Manager to sign the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority 
Liability and Property Insurance renewal effective November 1, 2021 through November 1, 
2022 in the amount of $181,019.00. Funds for these expenditures are available in accounts 
101.248.910.00, 205.345.910.00, 205.346.910.00, 592.540.910.00. 
 















10-25-2021



10-25-2021



Community:
Renewal period:

Total Contribution Fixed  Costs Property Totals Stop Loss
$174,801 $134,801 $6,105,051 $150,000
$181,019 $141,019 $6,421,387 $150,000

$6,218 $6,218 $316,336 $0
3.6% 4.6% 5.2% 0.0%

Notes: New MMRMA property adjuster, Tracey Cool, tcool@mmrma.org

RAP Grants:
Approved Issued Description Amount Comments

5/11/06 6/8/09 Ready Buckle System $500 $125 each

5/28/08 3/27/12 In Car Cameras $13,000
50% up to $10K (new) 
& 1/3 up to $3K 
(replace)

3/14/12 Tasers $4,000 50% up to $4,000
3/17/15 8/17/15 Digital Camera & Security $11,660 50% up to $11,660
3/17/15 5/1/15 In Car Cameras $9,000 1/3 up to $9,000

11/13/17 3/30/18 Tasers $5,000 $500/unit up to $5,000
3/15/19 5/10/19 Bumper Guard Project $305 50% up to $304.55
5/14/19 6/10/19 NFPA Fire Inspector $1,950 75% up t $1,950
3/6/20 4/15/20 Staff & Command Project $4,875 75% up to $4,875
6/1/21 7/30/21 Body Worn & In Car Cameras $13,500 $13,500 

$66,290

2006 MMRMA Distribution:  $3,519
2007 MMRMA Distribution: $8,064
2008 MMRMA Distribution: $25,253
2010 MMRMA Distribution: $15,804
2011 MMRMA Distribution: $32,188
2012 MMRMA Distribution:  $49,026 PK
2013 MMRMA Distribution: $15,626 PK
2014 MMRMA Distribution: $38,113 LZ
2015 MMRMA Distribution: $54,745 PK
2016 MMRMA Distribution: $69,179 LZ
2017 MMRMA Distribution: $58,720 KE
2018 MMRMA Distribution: $85,057 LZ
2019 MMRMA Distribution: $89,819 LZ
2020 MMRMA Distribution: $112,154 KE
2021 MMRMA Distribution: $82,184 LZ

$739,451

Last Year 
This Year
Total Change
% Change (+ -)

Village of Beverly Hills
Nov. 1, 2021 to Nov. 1, 2022



B8 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 Chris Wilson, Village Manager 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Announcement of a Zoning Board of Appeals Vacancy  
 
Date:   October 28, 2021            
 
There is a full-member vacancy on the Board for a partial term ending June 30, 2023.  
 
The ZBA meets the second Monday of the month at 7:30 p.m. as necessary. The ZBA hears appeals of 
applicants who request exceptions from or official interpretations of the Zoning Ordinance. Members 
must decide whether or not a physical hardship or practical difficulty exists which justifies the granting 
of a variance. 
 
All interested and eligible residents of Beverly Hills are encouraged to apply to become a member of the 
ZBA. Applications are available on the Village website or by emailing the Village Clerk at 
krutkowski@villagebeverlyhills.com. Applications may be submitted to the Clerk’s office via email, 
regular mail, in person, or using the drop box located outside the Village office (18500 W. 13 Mile Road, 
Beverly Hills, MI 48025). 
 
Applications are due Wednesday, December 1, 2021.  
 
This constitutes an announcement of a vacancy on the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

mailto:krutkowski@villagebeverlyhills.com


 

 

VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 

CHRIS D. WILSON 

OCTOBER 29, 2021 

 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning Administrator Position – As Council is aware, Mark Lloyd has resigned 

his position as Planning and Zoning Administrator effective November 5th. In consultation with the 

Personnel Committee, I will be appointing current Building Dept. Clerk Carissa Brown to this 

position on an interim basis as of Monday, November 8th.  As I am leaving at the end of November 

it would be best to allow a new Village Manager to determine how to proceed with this position.  

Ms. Brown is agreeable to accept the position and understands that it is on an interim basis.  

Should a different individual be hired to fill this position in the future, Carissa will return to her 

current position.  I am confident that Carissa will perform well in this position.  Village 

Administration is working with Safebuilt to bring in a clerical employee on a temporary basis to 

assume the duties Carissa is currently performing.  We wish Mr. Lloyd the best in his new position 

as Township Manager in Northfield Township.   

 

 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds – The Village has received confirmation that our 

ARPA application has been received and approved.  The Village will be receiving $1,083,529 

through the ARPA program.   We will receive half of those funds in the next thirty (30) days, with 

the remainder of the funds coming approximately twelve (12) months later.  Finance Director 

McCarthy has established a separate fund, Fund 257, to account for these funds.  The Village will 

be required to submit our first Project and Expenditure Report by April 30 of next year.  The 

content that will be required in that report is not known at this time.  Village Administration will 

continue to monitor this.  Finance Director McCarthy participated in a seminar with the Michigan 

Department of Treasury regarding guidelines for use of these ARPA funds.  Treasury provided a 

list of four (4) allowable uses of these funds.  I have included a brief summary of these categories 

for your review.  Village Administration and Council will need to, prior to the April 30 report date, 

establish a plan for the allocation of these funds.    

 

 

FY 2020-21 Audit – The annual audit presentation will be conducted at the regular meeting of 

Tuesday, November 16th.   This is later than the normal audit presentation, primarily due to the 

extra work required by the federally funded 13 Mile Rd. project, for which the Village was the lead 

agency.  Village Administration has reviewed the audit figures and found them to be in order and 

in line with expectations.   

 

 

Coat Drive – The Village of Beverly Hills will be serving as a drop off location for the Oakland 

County Sherriff’s annual Coat Drive.  A drop box will be located in the Village Hall.  The Coat 

Drive will run from November 1 – November 30.   

 



 

Village Hall Generator – Village Administration has been able to obtain two quotes for the 

installation of a generator to operate Village Hall in the case of a power outage.   The lower of the 

two bids was $68,000.  This would be with the same firm that Southfield Township is using to 

install their generator.  This price is in line with a quote the Village received a few years ago and 

with the most recent generator purchased for the Public Safety Building.  There will be a couple 

of months lead time to obtain a generator for installation.  If Council does not object, I will move 

forward and bring the quote before Council for your review and consideration.   

 

 

Veterans Day – Village and Township offices will be closed on Thursday, November 11th in 

observance of Veterans Day.   

 

 

















Beverly Hills Public Safety 
Activity Report 

Oct. 14-28, 2021  

 

• The Public Safety Department is currently 
looking for applicants for Public Safety 
Officer.  Please visit our website, 
www.beverlyhillspolice.com to see if you 
qualify. 
 

• For more information on Coronavirus 
Disease and vaccine please visit;  
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/index.html https://www.ready.gov/  
https://www.Michigan.gov/coronavirus  
https://www.oakgov.com/covid/Pages/defau
lt.aspx 
https://oaklandcountyvaccine.com  

 
Please remember to slow down as school is 
back in session.  The crossing guards are 
out there too.  Kudos to them and all that 
make this a safe community. 

 

 

o CALLS FOR SERVICE 

• 240 Calls for Service. 

• 110 Tickets issued. 

• 11 Arrests: 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for drop off. 

• Medical on Southfield Road. 

• Suspicious Person at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh Center. 

• Vehicle Lockout on 13 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School pick up. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile. 

• Lost dog returned to owner on Beechwood. 

• Alarm on Chelton Drive. 

http://www.beverlyhillspolice.com/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://www.ready.gov/
http://www.michigan.gov/coronavirus
https://www.oakgov.com/covid/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.oakgov.com/covid/Pages/default.aspx
https://oaklandcountyvaccine.com/


• Parole Absconder taken into custody at Southfield 
and 14 Mile without incident. Additional narcotic 
charges pending. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Extra Patrol at Berkshire School after hours. 

• Area Check in Nottingham Sub. 

• Extra Patrol in Beverly Park after hours. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Medical on Greenfield. 

• Wild Turkey Complaint at Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile. 

• Informational Report on 13 Mile. 

• Suspicious Person on Bellvine Trail. 

• Medical on Locherbie. 

• Beverly Park checks. 

• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Medical on 13 Mile Road. 

• PR Fire Truck brought to block party in sub. 

• Motorist Assist on Southfield. 

• Traffic Detail on Greenfield. 

• Driving Without a License (never applied) arrested 
without incident at 13 Mile and evergreen. 

• Extra Patrol in Beverly Park after hours. 

• Radar Detail at 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol in Bellvine trail Sub. 

• Misdemeanor Warrant Arrest taken into custody 
without incident at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol in Churchill Sub. 

• Lift Assist on Riverside Drive. 

• Medical on Marguerite. 

• Vehicle Lockout on Georgina Street. 

• Parking Complaint on Buckingham. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School at drop off. 

• Driving While License Suspended Arrest taken into 
custody without incident at 13 Mile and Evergreen. 

• Alarm on Churchill Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for pick up. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School for pick up. 

• Road Hazard removed from 13 Mile. 

• Animal Complaint on Kirkshire. 

• Traffic Accident on Southfield. 

• Installed Knox Box on Camelot Court. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Riverview. 

• Locked up Beverly Park. 



• Driving Without a License arrest taken into custody 
without incident at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Hospice Death on Riverview Court. 

• Radar Detail on Pierce and 14 Mile. 

• Found Bicycle on Waltham and Evergreen. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for drop off. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School for drop off. 

• Traffic Accident at Greenfield and Beverly. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for pick up. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School for pick up. 

• Parking Complaint at Chelsea and Riverside. 

• Alarm on Greenfield Road. 

• Wild Turkey Complaint on Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Motorist Assist on Greenfield Road. 

• Improper License Plate Confiscated on Lahser. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile and Pierce. 

• Beverly Park closed down. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on Evergreen Road. 

• Suspicious Person on Sheridan. 

• Traffic Accident on Lahser and Village Pines. 

• Found Bicycle on Dunblaine. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh shopping Center. 

• Road Hazard Cleared on 14 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School during pick up. 

• Traffic Accident on Southfield and Kinross. 

• Extra Patrol in the T.J.MAXX complex. 

• Animal Complaint on Sunnyslope. 

• Suspicious Person on Cline Street. 

• Suspicious Person on Saxon Drive. 

• Injury Accident on Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Beverly Park Closed down. 

• Lift Assist on Lauderdale. 

• Radar Detail on 13 Mile. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Alarm on Nottingham. 

• Welfare Check on Lauderdale. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet at the station. 

• Medical on 14 Mile Road. 

• Medical on Rivers Edge Court. 

• Wires Down on Evergreen Road. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Lift Assist on Beverly Road. 



• Radar Detail on 14 Mile Road. 

• Extra Patrol of Corners Shopping Center. 

• Child Car Seat Installation at the station. 

• Driving While License Suspended Arrest taken into 
custody without incident. 

• Beverly Park Closed down. 

• Family Trouble on Riverview Drive. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Stolen Auto Report on Madoline. Car recovered. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for drop off. 

• Road Hazard removed on 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Alarm on Riverbank. 

• Alarm on Birwood. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for pick up. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School for pick up. 

• Parking Complaint on Kirkshire. 

• School Liaison at Groves High School Football. 

• Juvenile Complaint on east Valley Woods. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on 14 Mile and Lahser. 

• Alarm on Southfield. 

• Open garage door found on Beverly. 

• Radar Detail on Pierce and 14 Mile. 

• Suspicious Persons on Riverside. 

• Radar Detail on Beverly Sheridan. 

• Traffic enforcement on Pierce and 13 Mile. 

• Assist Citizen on Kirkshire. 

• Suspicious Person on Birwood. 

• Welfare Check on Madoline. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet at the station. 

• Halloween Hoot Detail. 

• Lift Assist on McKenzie Court. 

• Alarm on Sheridan. 

• Traffic enforcement on Southfield and Beverly. 

• Fire Alarm on Sylvan Court. 

• Assist Motorist on Birwood. 

• Medical on Shagbark. 

• Medical on Beverly Court. 

• Found Dog on Buckingham. 

• Smoke Investigation at Southfield and Birwood. 

• Fire truck checks at the station. 

• Medical on Nixon. 

• Welfare Check on Reedmere. 



• Loose dogs on 14 Mile Road. 

• Traffic Accident on Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Hospice Death at Mission Point. 

• Beverly Park Closed for the night. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square. 

• Beverly School drop off. 

• Citizen Assist on Breezewood. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh Center. 

• Medical on 13 Mile. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet at station. 

• Assist Motorist on Evergreen. 

• Wires Down on Sheridan. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School. 

• Crime Prevention at T.J.MAXX shopping Center. 

• Medical on Kirkshire. 

• Suspicious Person in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Pierce and Madoline. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School after hours. 

• Hit and Run Accident on 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Driving While License Suspended Arrest without 
incident on Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol in the Nottingham Sub. 

• Extra Patrol at Berkshire School after hours. 

• Extra Patrol at Queen of Martyrs School after hours. 

• Beverly School morning drop off. 

• Vehicle Lockout on Fairfax. 

• Abandoned Vehicle on Southfield and Beverly. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet at station. 

• Medical on Kirkshire. 

• Lift Assist on McKenzie Court. 

• Welfare Check on Buckingham. 

• Driving While License Suspended arrest without 
incident on Southfield and Beverly. 

• Suspicious Circumstance on Waltham Court. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on Bedford Street. 

• Beverly Park Closed for the night. 

• Radar Detail on 13 Mile. 

• Hospice Death on Robinhood. 

• Animal Complaint on Lahser and Hilltop. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Shagbark. 

• Driving While License Suspended Arrest without 
incident on 14 Mile near Woodward. 

• Citizen Assist on Lauderdale. 

• Suspicious Person on 13 Mile and Wendbrook. 



• Medical on Orcutt Court. 

• Reckless Driving Stafford and Lahser. 

• Vehicle Lockout on 13 Mile. 

• Medical on Hillcrest. 

• Civil Matter Assist Citizen on Reedmere. 

• Assist DPW with Fire Hydrant on 13 Mile. 

• Alarm on Eastlady. 

• Welfare Check on Sylvan Lane. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Old Orchard. 

• Driving While License Suspended arrest without 
incident on Lahser Road. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Riverview. 

• Animal Complaint on Hilltop and Lahser. 

• Open Building on Waltham. 

• Open Building on Beverly. 

• Deer Removal from Lahser. 
 
 
 

 DETECTIVE REPORTS 

• CFS Closed and Reviewed-246 
• Followed and reviewed cases, of which 8 were closed 
• 2 Drunk driving Citations written. 
• SLO attended Groves Football game. 
• Sent Larceny Case to Oakland County Prosecutor. 
• Closed PIA Crash report. 
• Sent mask mandate case to Oakland County Pro and 

Oakland County Health Department-Review. 
• Prisoner transport to Oakland County jail. 
• Received warrant on UDAA-2019 case. 
• Recovered stolen vehicle in Detroit. 
• 46th District online Traffic court. 
• Subpoena request to Amazon. 
• Received Subpoena information on ID Theft case. 
• Set up Counterfeit Detection Seminar on 11/17/2021 

through US Secret Service. 
• Investigate potential fraud/Civil Matter.   . 

 

FIRE MARSHAL AND MEDICAL REPORTS   

• 39 Fire/EMS reports reviewed. 

• 12 Fire training hours entered into ISO records. 



• 16 EMS training hours entered into continuing 
education records. 

• Supervise Platoon 3 and 4. 

• Bi-Weekly NFIRS data export uploaded to FEMA. 

• Attend CLEMIS Advisory Committee and present 
quarterly Fire Governance update. 

• Attend monthly Mutual Aid Box Alarm System meeting 

• Attend monthly South Oakland Fire Association 
Meeting. 

• Attend Wednesday Wrap hosted by the State Fire 
Marshal. 

• Prepare Oakland County Medical Control Authority 

2021 Letter of Compliance to our Base Hospital 

Medical Control Physician for review and approval 

• Elderly/Infirmed Program residential Knox Box 

installed on Camelot Court. 

• Review draft Oakland County Training Committee By-

Laws. 

• Complete and order the Partner Agencies Purchasing 

Committee FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant 

(AFG) project to the selected vendor. 

 

 

One-ring” cell phone scam can ding 

your wallet 
Consumer Education Specialist 

Who’s calling now? That number doesn’t ring a bell. Hold 
the phone, says the Federal Trade Commission. You 
could be a potential victim of the growing "one-ring” cell 
phone scam. 

Here’s how it works: Scammers are using auto-dialers to 
call cell phone numbers across the country. Scammers 
let the phone ring once — just enough for a missed call 
message to pop up. 

The scammers hope you’ll call back, either because you 
believe a legitimate call was cut off, or you will be curious 
about who called. If you do, chances are you’ll hear 
something like, “Hello. You’ve reached the operator, 
please hold.” All the while, you’re getting slammed with 
some hefty charges — a per-minute charge on top of an 



international rate. The calls are from phone numbers with 
three-digit area codes that look like they’re from inside 
the U.S., but actually are associated with international 
phone numbers — often in the Caribbean. The area 
codes include: 268, 284, 473, 664, 649, 767, 809, 829, 
849 and 876. 

If you get a call like this, don’t pick it up and don’t call the 
number back. There’s no danger in getting the call: the 
danger is in calling back and racking up a whopping bill. 

If you're tempted to call back, do yourself a favor and 
check the number through online directories first. They 
can tell you where the phone number is registered. 

If you’ve been a victim of the “one-ring” scam, try to 
resolve the charges with your cell phone carrier. If that 
doesn’t work, file a complaint with the Federal Trade 
Commission and the Federal Communications 
Commission. 
And as a general rule: Read your phone bill often — line 
by line. If you don’t recognize or understand a charge, 
contact your carrier. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ftccomplaintassistant.gov/
http://www.ftccomplaintassistant.gov/
http://www.fcc.gov/complaints
http://www.fcc.gov/complaints


Info Item



October 26, 2021 
DR-4607-MI NR-36 
FEMA News Desk: 312-408-4455, 
FEMA-R5-news-desk@fema.dhs.gov 
 EMHSD contact: Bailey Wilkins, 517-242-3748 

News Release 
FEMA Funds May Help Homes Damaged by the June Flooding 
Detroit – FEMA’s Individuals and Households Program (IHP) has a new category of funds for qualified individuals and 
families with homes damaged by the June 25 and 26 flooding. The funds encourage homeowners to take steps now to 
protect their property, reducing the likelihood of future disaster damage to their homes.  

“Time and time again FEMA has seen tangible results with programs that help reduce risk and protect property from 
future disasters,” said Federal Coordinating Officer Scott Burgess, who oversees FEMA’s response and recovery efforts 
in southeast Michigan. “That’s why our agency has invested in this new kind of home repair assistance for 
homeowners and families. The program will help protect their homes against future disasters.” 

Homeowners who apply for disaster assistance and are eligible for IHP assistance may receive additional funds from 
FEMA for specific mitigation measures. These funds will be provided within the award amount for homeowners 
determined eligible for Home Repair Assistance from FEMA. Authority for this assistance comes from the Robert T. 
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Act.  

The funds can be used for the following types of mitigation measures: 
• Repair a roof to withstand higher winds and to help prevent water infiltration
• Elevate a water heater or a furnace to avoid future flood damage
• Move or elevate an electrical panel to avoid future flood damage

The funds are available for: 
• owner-occupied, primary residences damaged by the June 25-26 flooding.
• use for specific damaged items that were present and functional in the home prior to the disaster and were

then damaged by the disaster.

As of Oct. 19, FEMA has approved more than $10.4 million in funding under this program to 35,530 qualified 
applicants. 

How the Program Works 
After they apply for disaster assistance, applicants will be informed if they qualify for disaster assistance and if that 
assistance includes funds for home-mitigation measures. The amount of assistance is subject to the Stafford Act limit 
for Housing Assistance, which is $37,500 for FY2022. 

Applicants with questions should talk with a FEMA representative before proceeding. They can either: 
• Call FEMA toll-free at 800-621-3362 (including 711 or Video Relay). TTY users can call 800-462-7585. The

phone numbers are open 7 a.m. to 11 p.m. EDT, seven days a week. Multilingual operators are available. Press 

Info Item

mailto:FEMA-R5-news-desk@fema.dhs.gov


2 for Spanish. Press 3 for Arabic and other languages. 
 

• Visit a Disaster Recovery Center. To find the location, the open hours and more information about any center 
anywhere, visit FEMA's Disaster Recovery Center Locator or text DRC and your ZIP code to 43362. (Example: 
DRC 01234.) Standard text message rates apply. 

o State of Michigan-FEMA Disaster Recovery Centers are in Wayne and Macomb counties. 
 
For more details about the actions eligible for funding as well as additional information, see this downloadable  
fema.gov/Hazard Mitigation Under the Individuals and Households Program Fact Sheet. Also, talk to a FEMA 
representative before starting any work. 
 
For more information about Michigan’s recovery, visit fema.gov/disaster/4607. FEMA assistance is currently available 
to residents in Oakland, Macomb, Washtenaw and Wayne counties. The deadline for individuals to apply for disaster 
assistance is Nov. 12, 2021. 

### 

Disaster recovery assistance is available without regard to race, color, religion, nationality, sex, age, disability, English 
proficiency, or economic status. Reasonable accommodations, including translation and American Sign Language 
interpreters via Video Relay Service, will be available to ensure effective communication with applicants with limited 
English proficiency, disabilities, and access and functional needs. If you or someone you know has been discriminated 
against, call FEMA toll-free at 800-621-3362 (including 711 or Video Relay). If you are deaf, hard of hearing or have a 
speech disability and use a TTY, call 800-462-7585. 

FEMA’s mission is helping people before, during, and after disasters. 
fema.gov/disaster/4607 
twitter.com/femaregion5 
 

 

 

https://egateway.fema.gov/ESF6/DRCLocator
https://www.fema.gov/fact-sheet/hazard-mitigation-under-individuals-and-households-program
http://www.fema.gov/disaster/4607
http://www.fema.gov/disaster/4607
https://twitter.com/femaregion5

	Agenda 11022021 (color)
	C1 Draft Council Minutes 10192021
	C2 Review and file bills recapped 10.25.2021
	11.02.2021 Cover Sheet
	CHK
	CHK 2

	B1 Lions Club Candy Cane
	B1 Lions Club Memo
	B1 Lions Club Letter

	B2 Report w attachments - DA - Goddard
	11-2-2021 vc report dev agree goddard
	B3 Memos and Docs Goddard
	B3 vc report goddard v2 10-19-2021
	B3 Memo to President George & Village Council -- Goodard School Development Agreement -- 10.14.21
	B3 Development Agreement w attachment 10-19
	DA_KLMsigned
	Legal Description
	SITE DRAWINGS 8-12-21 reduced
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	C-8.0 DRAINAGE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-7.0 SESC PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.5 DETENTION SYSTEM DETAILS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.4 DETAILS-4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.3 DETAILS-3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.2 DETAILS-2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.1 NOTES + DETAILS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-5.0 UTILITY PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-4.0 GRADING PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-3.1 PUBLIC OPEN SPACE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-3.0 SITE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-2.0 DEMO.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-1.0 TOPO.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	GSI-2.0 Playground Details-2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24x36
	PLOT
	FULL
	ZZZ



	GSI-1.0 Playground Details-1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24x36
	PLOT
	FULL
	ZZZ



	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part4.pdf
	STD-Wtr4of7

	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part3.pdf
	STD-Wtr3of7

	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part2.pdf
	STD-Wtr2of7

	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part1.pdf
	STD-Wtr1of7


	Proposed Construction Phasing
	20210728 - conceptual image pkg


	VILLAGE COUNCIL PRESENTATION - GODDARD

	B3 Park Filming Fees
	B4 Concert in the Park
	B4 July Concert in the Park
	Memo to President George & Village Council --  Oakland County Parks Facility-Property Use Agreement  -- 10.28.21

	B5 Backflow Prevention Program Memo & Docs
	B5 Backflow Preventor Program Memo
	B5 Backflow Prevention Program Oct. 2021
	B5 Backflow Preventer Reimbursement Application Fillable
	B5 VBH Sewer Map 2021
	B5 Plumbing Permit Application 06 2020
	VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS
	PLUMBING
	Water Distribution 1½ – 2”
	Water Distribution 4”
	Contractor registration


	B6 Concrete Change Order
	B6 2021 Concrete Program Change Order 1 10-29-21
	Change Order Concrete Patching

	B7 Insurance Renewal Memo and Docs
	B7 Liability Insurance Renewal 10-28-21
	MMRMA Coverage Proposal
	Member Comparison

	B8 ZBA Vacancy Announcement
	Manager's Report with Attachment
	Managers Report 10-28-21
	Manager's Report attachment

	BHPS Report Oct 14-28 2021
	Info Item Coats for Cold
	Info Item NR036 New FEMA Funds Can Help Homes Damaged by the June Flooding Recover_

	Name: 
	Telephone Number: 
	Date of installation: 
	Cost of installation: 
	Plumbing Permit Number: 
	Contractor Name: 
	Date of Final Inspection Approval: 
	Reimbursement Amount: 
	Village Approval: 
	Invoice: 
	Check: 
	Date: 
	BUILDING PERMIT: 
	Job Address: 
	Suite: 
	Lot: 
	on: 
	Owner: 
	Phone: 
	New: Off
	Addn: Off
	Alter: Off
	Res: Off
	Comm: Off
	Ind: Off
	Company Name: 
	Contact: 
	Phone_2: 
	Address: 
	City: 
	State: 
	Zip: 
	License: 
	Federal ID: 
	MESC: 
	er: 
	Check_2: Off
	NumberBackf ow PreventerD sconnect: 
	Total3000: 
	NumberSump: 
	Total3000_2: 
	NumberBackwater Check Va ve: 
	Total2400: 
	NumberUrina: 
	Total1800: 
	NumberBathtub: 
	Total1800_2: 
	NumberWasher Automat c Standpipe: 
	Total1800_3: 
	NumberDental Chair: 
	Total1800_4: 
	NumberWater C oset toi et: 
	Total1800_5: 
	NumberD shwasher: 
	Total1800_6: 
	NumberWater Heater: 
	Total1800_7: 
	NumberDr nk ng Fountain: 
	Total1800_8: 
	NumberWater D str but on ½: 
	Total2400_2: 
	NumberFloor Drain: 
	Total1800_9: 
	NumberWater D str but on 1: 
	Total3000_3: 
	NumberGarbage D sposal: 
	Total1800_10: 
	NumberWater Distribution 1½  2: 
	Total4300: 
	NumberGrease Trap: 
	Total2400_3: 
	NumberWater D str but on 2½: 
	Total4900: 
	NumberHumidifier: 
	Total1800_11: 
	NumberWater D str but on 3: 
	Total6200: 
	NumberIce Maker: 
	Total1800_12: 
	NumberWater Distribution 4: 
	Total6800: 
	NumberLaundry Tray: 
	Total1800_13: 
	NumberWater D str but on Over 4: 
	Total8100: 
	NumberMedical Gas Each System: 
	Total3000_4: 
	NumberWater Treatment Dev ce: 
	Total3700: 
	NumberMedical Gas Vacuum PumpA r Compr: 
	Total4300_2: 
	NumberWeeping T e Trap  Ins de Drain: 
	Total3700_2: 
	NumberPump  Water Lift: 
	Total3000_5: 
	NumberUnlisted F xturesItem: 
	Total3000_6: 
	NumberRoof Sump: 
	Total1800_14: 
	Unlisted F xturesItem1800: 
	Number1800: 
	30001800: 
	Total1800_15: 
	NumberSafe Waste: 
	Total1800_16: 
	Unlisted F xturesItem1800_2: 
	Number1800_2: 
	30001800_2: 
	Total1800_17: 
	NumberShower Trap: 
	Total1800_18: 
	NumberMin mum Permit fee: 
	Total7500: 
	NumberSill CockHose Bib: 
	Total1800_19: 
	NumberContractor registrat on: 
	Total1500: 
	NumberSink Bar: 
	Total3000_7: 
	Contractor registrat on3000: 
	Number3000: 
	15003000: 
	Total3000_8: 
	NumberS nk Lav: 
	Total1800_20: 
	Contractor registrat on1800: 
	Number1800_3: 
	15001800: 
	Total1800_21: 
	NumberStacks Conductor Vents AAV: 
	Total2400_4: 
	Contractor registrat on2400: 
	Number2400: 
	15002400: 
	Total2400_5: 
	If the Backflow Prevention Device serves a Fire Suppression System then a separate fire suppression system permit is required: 
	gnature: 


